STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

DATE AND TIME OF BID OPENING: JUNE 29, 2021 AT 2:00 P.M.

BID PROPOSAL NO.: 54-CA-11994333

WBS ELEMENT NO.: VARIOUS

FEDERAL AID NO.: VARIOUS

COUNTIES: ALL

LOCATION: VARIOUS

TYPE OF WORK: HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTE SERVICES,

UPON REQUEST

DATE OF AVAILABILITY: JULY 12, 2021

COMPLETION DATE: JULY 11, 2022

PRE-QUALIFICATION MANDATORY

PROPOSAL

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF

BID NO. 54-CA-11994333 IN NORTH CAROLINA

JUNE 4, 2021

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA

The Bidder has carefully examined the location of the proposed work to be known as BID NO **54-CA-11994333**; has carefully examined the plans and specifications, which are acknowledged to be part of the proposal, the special provisions, the proposal, the form of contract; and thoroughly understands the stipulations, requirements and provisions. The undersigned bidder agrees to bound upon his execution of the bid and subsequent award to him by the Department of Transportation in accordance with this proposal. The undersigned Bidder further agrees to provide all necessary machinery, tools, labor, and other means of construction; and to do all the work and to furnish all materials, except as otherwise noted, necessary to perform and complete the said contract in accordance with *the 2018 Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures* by the dates(s) specified in the Project Special Provisions and in accordance with the requirements of the Engineer, and at the unit or lump sum prices, as the case may be, for the various items given on the sheets contained herein.

The Bidder shall provide and furnish all the materials, machinery, implements, appliances and tools, and perform the work and required labor to construct and complete State Highway BID NO. **54-CA-11994333**, for the unit or lump sum prices, as the case may be, bid by the Bidder in his bid and according to the proposal, plans, and specifications prepared by said Department, which proposal, plans, and specifications show the details covering this project, and hereby become a part of this contract.

The published volume entitled *North Carolina Department of Transportation, Raleigh, Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures, January 2018* with all amendments and supplements thereto, is by reference incorporated into and made a part of this contract; that, except as herein modified, all the construction and work included in this contract is to be done in accordance with the specifications contained in said volume, and amendments and supplements thereto, under the direction of the Engineer.

If the proposal is accepted and the award is made, the contract is valid only when signed either by the Contract Officer or such other person as may be designated by the Secretary to sign for the Department of Transportation. The conditions and provisions herein cannot be changed except over the signature of the said Contract Officer or Division Engineer.

The quantities shown in the itemized proposal for the project are considered to be approximate only and are given as the basis for comparison of bids. The Department of Transportation may increase or decrease the quantity of any item or portion of the work as may be deemed necessary or expedient.

An increase or decrease in the quantity of an item will not be regarded as sufficient ground for an increase or decrease in the unit prices, nor in the time allowed for the completion of the work, except as provided for the contract.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROJECT SPECIAL PROVISIONS - GENERAL	PAGE NO.
Description	5
Mandatory Pre-Bid	5
Bid Questions	6
Pre-Qualification	6
Contract Time and Completion Date	6
Non-Exclusive Contract	6
Bond Requirements	7
Award of Contract	7
Authority of the Engineer	7
Insurance	8
Subletting of Contract	8
Prosecution and Progress	8
Temporary Suspension of the Work	8
Safety and Accident Protection	8
Site Investigation and Representation	8
Inspection	9
Supervision by Contractor	9
Utility Conflicts	9
Declaration of Default	9
Prompt Payment	10
Payment	10
Debarment Statement	10
Bankruptcy	10
No Major Contract Items	11
No Specialty Items	11
Bids Over Limit	11
Outsourcing Outside the USA	11
Erosion, Siltation, and Pollution Control	11
Certification for Federal-Aid Contracts	11
U.S. Department of Transportation Hotline	12
Cargo Preference Act	12
Burning Restrictions	12
Revision to FHWA-1273 Concerning Tap-Funded Projects	12
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (Divisions)	13
PROJECT SPECIAL PROVISIONS - ROADWAY	PAGE NO
Scope	23
Regulatory Requirements	24
Hazardous Waste Disposal	24
Removal of Waste Material (General)	25
Manifest/Documentation of Disposal	25
Packaging/Labeling/Marking	26
Handling/Loading/Transportation of Material	26
Routine Requirements	26
Emergency Response	27
Health and Safety Plan Requirements	28
Salvage	28
Quality Provisions	28
Stop Fees	29
Technical Services	29
Laboratory Analysis	30

Disposal – Fuel Blending and Landfills	30
Lab Pack Waste Treatment	31
Recycling	31
Investigation Derived Waste	31
Medical Waste	31
Equipment Conditions	32
Equipment Idling Guidelines	32
Protection and Restoration of Property	33
Cooperation Between Contractors	33
Damages	33
STANDARD SPECIAL PROVISIONS	PAGE NO.
Availability of Funds – Termination of Contracts	34
Plant and Pest Quarantines	34
Errata	35
Minority and Female Employment Requirements	35
Employment Goals for Minority and Female Participation	36
Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts	37
On-The-Job Training	44
Minimum Wages	46
Title VI and Nondiscrimination	61
Attachment: Waste Disposal Service Regions and Counties	67
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	PAGE NO.
Preparation and Submission of Traditional Paper Bids	68
Opening of Bids	69
BID SUBMITTAL PACKAGE	PAGE NO.
Cover Sheet	1
Contract Bid Form	2
Contractor's Contact Information	12
Contractor Work Experience	13
References	14
Listing of DBE Subcontractors	15
Execution of Bid Non-Collusion, Debarment and Gift Ban Certification	16
Bid Submittal Package Checklist	24

PROJECT SPECIAL PROVISIONS - GENERAL

DESCRIPTION

The intent of this Request for Proposals (RFP) is to solicit proposals from qualified waste management Bidders that are capable of handling a wide variety of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, under routine, non-emergency, and emergency time constraints. The Contractors selected shall provide comprehensive services ranging from possible characterization of unknowns through proper disposal and/or recycling. Recycling is the preferred method of disposal if practicable or feasible.

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as "NCDOT" or "Department") is seeking to select technically qualified Contractors and Subcontractors in order to enter into multiple contracts for the identification, handling, transportation, and disposal/recycling of regulated or hazardous waste materials under both non-emergency and emergency conditions. The Department intends to award contracts for each of three (3) regions as shown in Attachment A. Selected Contractors shall be required to submit cost proposals based on unit rates for labor, mileage, supplies and equipment on an as needed basis for each emergency or non-emergency job. Incomplete Cost Proposals will disqualify the Bidder applicant. Vendor shall complete every Bid Sheet line item. Bidders may bid on a single or on multiple regions and may be awarded a contract for single or multiple regions. The Department will evaluate the technical and cost proposals submitted under this RFP and rank the submittals based on both technical and cost criteria in order to select the best value proposed for the Department.

Contingent upon prequalification of the Contractors with NCDOT, NCDOT shall then have the option to request quotes from one or multiple Contractors within each region for emergency response actions or non-emergency waste disposal jobs. The statements or scope of work for individual quotes will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria in the RFP. Larger projects such as soil remediation for NCDOT construction projects may be bid on across the regional boundaries, on a statewide basis. Contractors shall provide quotes with prices not to exceed those in their cost proposal.

Proposals shall be submitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of this RFP and any addenda issued hereto.

The published volume entitled North Carolina Department of Transportation, Raleigh, Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures, January 2018 with all amendments and supplements thereto, is by reference incorporated into and made a part of this contract. Unless otherwise modified, all the work included in this contract is to be done in accordance with the specifications contained in said volume, and amendments and supplements thereto, under the direction of the Engineer.

All work and materials shall be in accordance with the provisions of the General Guidelines of this contract, the Project Special Provisions, the North Carolina Department of Transportation <u>Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures 2018</u>, the North Carolina Department of Transportation <u>Roadway Standards Drawings</u>, and the current edition of the <u>Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)</u>.

The Contractor shall keep himself fully informed of all Federal, State, and Local laws, ordinances, regulations, all work and materials shall be in accordance with the provisions of the General Guidelines of this contract, the Project Special Provisions, the 2018 North Carolina Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures.

These manuals may be found at the following websites: http://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/ and https://connect.ncdot.gov/resources/Specifications/Pages/2018-Specifications-and-Special-Provisions.aspx.

MANDATORY PRE-BID

Please be advised that any references in the RFP to pre-bid language will not apply as a pre-bid will not be held for this contract. If bidders have questions they will be addressed in an addendum.

BID QUESTIONS

Purpose: Upon review of the bid documents, bidders may have questions to clarify or interpret the bid in order to submit the best bid possible. To accommodate the Bid Questions process, bidders shall submit by email any such questions <u>no</u> <u>later than Thursday</u>, <u>June 10</u>, <u>2021 at 10:00 AM</u>. A response to bidder questions will be in the form of an addendum.

Instructions: Written questions shall be emailed to Christian Andresen ctandresen@ncdot.gov by the date and time specified above. Bidders will enter "54-CA-11994333 — Questions" as the subject for the email. Questions received prior to the submission deadline date, the State's response, and any additional terms deemed necessary by the State will be documented and included in an addendum to be posted on Connect NCDOT:

https://connect.ncdot.gov/letting/Pages/Roadside-Environmental.aspx
and on the Interactive Purchasing System (IPS): https://www.ips.state.nc.us/ips/. No information, instruction or advice provided orally or informally by any State personnel, whether made in response to a question or otherwise in connection with this RFP, shall be considered authoritative or binding. Bidders shall be entitled to rely only on written material contained in an Addendum to this RFP.

PRE-QUALIFICATION

Firms that wish to bid on these projects as the prime contractor must be pre-qualified as either a Bidder or Purchase Order Contract (POC) Prime Contractor prior to submitting the bid. Firms that wish to perform as a Subcontractor to the Prime Contractor must be pre-qualified prior to beginning work on the project.

Information regarding the requirements to become pre-qualified as a Bidder or POC Prime Contractor, including the application to become pre-qualified, can be found at the following website: https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Prequal/Pages/default.aspx.

If unsure as to whether a firm is currently pre-qualified by NCDOT through Contractual Services Management, search the Directory of Transportation Firms at the following website: https://www.ebs.nc.gov/VendorDirectory/default.html. Bids received from firms that are not pre-qualified as Bidders or POC Prime Contractors through NCDOT Contractual Services Management will not be opened.

Bidders must renew their pre-qualification or re-qualify each year. It is the bidder's responsibility to ensure that their existing pre-qualification status does not lapse prior to bid opening (or beginning work as a subcontractor). Advance notification of pending renewal dates is not guaranteed.

CONTRACT TIME AND COMPLETION DATE

The date of availability for this contract is **July 12, 2021**.

The completion date for this contract is July 11, 2022.

At its discretion, the Department may offer extension of the contract for an additional term up to a maximum of five (5) total terms (original term and four (4) renewals). Extensions for additional term(s) are not guaranteed and are at the sole discretion of the Department.

The Engineer will notify the Contractor in writing by March 1 of each available term if the contract may be extended or not extended. The Engineer must receive a signed response from the Contractor within two (2) calendar weeks of the date of the offer letter. Failure by the Contractor to reply may be received as a rejection of contract extension.

NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

The Contractor(s) understands and agrees, by signature on the Purchase Order Contract Bid Form, that this agreement **does not** constitute an exclusive contract. If awarded, the contracts will be executed with the lowest responsible bidders.

The Department of Transportation reserves the right to make multiple awards for the services provided by this contract. Furthermore, the Department reserves the right to reject all bids received.

BOND REQUIREMENTS – No Bonds Required:

The provisions of Articles 102-10 and 103-7 of the 2018 Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures are waived for this project. No bonds required.

AWARD OF CONTRACT

"The North Carolina Department of Transportation, in accordance with the provisions of *Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964* (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R., Part 21), issued pursuant to such act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that the contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder without discrimination on the ground of race, color, or national origin".

All eligible proposals will be evaluated and acceptance made of the bid judged in the discretion of the contracting agency to determine the lowest responsible bidder for the purpose intended. The Contracting Agency using its discretion, will determine whether a bidder is a "responsible" bidder. In determining whether a bidder is "responsible, the Contracting Agency will evaluate, the bid price, completeness and content of the bid, Bidder's related work experience, ability of the Bidder and staff to perform the services required, Bidder's past performance, references, and Bidder's financial stability. After opening bids and prior to award, the Contracting Agency may also seek supporting documentation prior to determining whether a bidder is a "responsible" bidder. No changes in bid price or price negotiations will be allowed after bids are opened and prior to an award. After the Contracting Agencies evaluation, the award of the contract, if awarded, will be made to the lowest responsible bidder(s). The lowest responsible bidders will be notified that their bid has been accepted and that they have been awarded the contract. Withdrawal of proposal will be allowed only under limited conditions. If a Bidder is awarded a contract, he/she will be expected to perform the work. Failure to perform may result in the Bidder being held in default of contract. In the event of default, the Department may, in its discretion, contact the next lowest responsible bidder to determine whether that next lowest responsible bidder is willing and able to complete the contract at its bid price.

All awards are final and are not subject to further review. Any formal complaints concerning awards should be made in writing to the Engineer.

MULTI-YEAR MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS:

(4.20.21)

SP1 G75

This contract is a multi-year maintenance contract let pursuant to the provisions of N.C. General Statute §136-28.1. In accordance with N.C. General Statute §136-28.1, an award in a maintenance contract shall not exceed \$5,000,000 per year. This contract award is limited to \$5,000,000 per year. No payments in excess of this amount will be disbursed, in accordance with the Statute.

AUTHORITY OF THE ENGINEER

The Engineer for this project shall be the either the Chief Engineer or Division Engineer in the division which work is being performed, Division of Highways, North Carolina Department of Transportation, acting directly or through his duly authorized representatives. The Engineer will decide all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of work performed and as to the rate of progress of the work; all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the contract; and all questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the contract on the part of the Contractor. His decision shall be final and he shall have executive authority to enforce and make effective such decisions and orders as the Contractor fails to carry out promptly.

INSURANCE

The Contractor shall maintain all legally required insurance coverage, including without limitation, worker's compensation and vehicle liability, in the amounts required by law. Refer to Section 107-15 in the "Standard Specifications for Roads and Structures, 2018" for additional information.

SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT

If a Contractor desires to sublet any work, written consent must be given by the Engineer. The approval of any subcontract will not release the Contractor of liability under the contract, nor will the subcontractor or the second tier subcontractor have any claim against NCDOT by reason of the approval of the subcontract.

PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS

The Contractor shall pursue the work diligently with workmen in sufficient numbers, abilities, and supervision, and with equipment, materials, and methods of construction as may be required to complete the work described in the contract by the completion date and in accordance with Section 108 of the <u>Standard Specifications</u>.

The Contractor's vehicles and equipment shall not be parked within the State Highway System right of way overnight or at other times when work has been suspended unless approved by the Engineer, and in no case within 30 feet of the edge of pavement. The Engineer may designate specific locations for parking equipment.

The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable regulations and follow accepted safety procedures when working in the vicinity of utilities in order to insure the safety of construction personnel and the public.

TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK

In accordance with Article 108-7 of the Standard Specifications, the Engineer will have the authority to suspend the work wholly or in part, any written order for such periods as he may deem necessary for any of the following reasons.

- 1. Conditions considered unfavorable for the suitable prosecution of the work, or
- 2. The Contractor's failure for correct conditions unsafe for workmen or the general public, or
- 3. The Contractor has not carried out orders given to him by the Engineer, or
- 4. The Contractor's failure to perform any provisions of the contract.

No extension of the completion date will be allowed for the above suspensions except as may be provided for in Article 108-10.

SAFETY AND ACCIDENT PROTECTION

In accordance with 107-21 of the <u>Standard Specifications</u>. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations governing safety, health, and sanitation, and shall provide all safeguards, safety devices, and protective equipment, and shall take any other needed actions, on his own responsibility that are reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public, and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.

SITE INVESTIGATION AND REPRESENTATION:

By signing the proposal documents, the Contractor acknowledges that:

- (A) He understands the nature of the work and general and local conditions, particularly those bearing on transportation;
- (B) He is familiar with the availability and cost of labor and materials;
- (C) He will to adhere to State regulations for safety and security of property, roads, and facilities;

- (D) He is able to prosecute the work in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal rules and regulations, and;
- (E) He has thoroughly investigated the project site(s).

Any failure on the part of the Contractor to acquaint himself with all available information shall not relieve him from the responsibility of any aspect of the contracting process. No adjustment in contract time or contract prices will be made due to the Contractor's negligence to familiarize himself with the contract or project site(s).

INSPECTION

All work shall be subject to inspection by the Engineer at any time. Routinely, the Engineer will make periodic inspections of the completed work. It will be the responsibility of the contractor to keep the Engineer informed of his proposed work plan and to submit written reports of work accomplished on a frequency to be determined by the Engineer.

SUPERVISION BY CONTRACTOR

At all times during the life of the project the Contractor shall provide one permanent employee who shall have the authority and capability for overall responsibility of the project and who shall be personally available at the work site within 24 hours' notice. Such employee shall be fully authorized to conduct all business with the subcontractors, to negotiate and execute all supplemental agreements, and to execute the orders or directions of the Engineer.

At all times that work is actually being performed, the Contractor shall have present on the project one competent individual who is authorized to act in a supervisory capacity over all work on the project, including work subcontracted. The individual who has been so authorized shall be experienced in the type of work being performed and shall be fully capable of managing, directing, and coordinating the work; of reading and thoroughly understanding the contract; and receiving and carrying out directions from the Engineer or his authorized representatives. He shall be an employee of the Contractor unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

The Contractor may, at his option, designate one employee to meet the requirements of both positions. However, whenever the designated employee is absent from the work site, an authorized individual qualified to act in a supervisory capacity on the project shall be present.

UTILITY CONFLICTS

The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable regulations and follow accepted safety procedures when working in the vicinity of utilities in order to insure the safety of construction personnel and the public.

Special care shall be used in working around or near existing utilities, protecting them when necessary to provide uninterrupted service. In the event that any utility service is interrupted, the Contractor shall notify the utility owner immediately and shall cooperate with the owner, or their representative, in the restoration of service in the shortest time possible. Existing fire hydrants shall be kept accessible to fire departments at all times.

DECLARATION OF DEFAULT

The Department shall have the right to declare a default of contract for breach by the Contractor of any material term or condition of the contract. Material breach by the Contractor shall include, but specifically shall not be limited to failure to begin work under the contract within the time specified; failure to provide workmen or equipment adequate to perform the work; unsatisfactory performance of the work, failure to maintain satisfactory work progress, or failure to maintain a valid pesticide license. Default of contract shall be in accordance with the terms, conditions, and procedures of Article 108-9 of the Standard Specifications.

PROMPT PAYMENT

Contractors at all levels, prime, subcontractor, or second tier contractor, shall within seven calendar days of receipt of monies, resulting from work performed on the project or services rendered, pay subcontractors, second tier subcontractors, or material suppliers, as appropriate. This seven-day period begins upon knowledgeable receipt by the contracting firm obligated to make a subsequent periodic payment or final payment. These prompt payment requirements will be met if each firm mails the payment to the next level firm by evidence of postmark within the seven-day period.

This provision for prompt payment shall be incorporated into each subcontract or second tier subcontract issued for work performed on the project or for services provided. Failure of any entity to make prompt payment as defined herein may result in (1) withholding of money due to that entity in the next partial payment until such assurances are made satisfactory to this provision; or (2) removal of an approved contractor from the pre- qualified bidders list or the removal of other entities from the approved subcontractors list.

PAYMENT

Requests for payment shall be made by Contractor's Invoice. All invoice items and unit costs shall correspond to contract pay items as they appear on the Purchase Order. The Engineer shall verify the quantities submitted on the invoice prior to payment. In the event of error or discrepancy in items or unit costs, the Department may return the invoice to the Contractor for correction. The invoice shall be completely and legibly filled out with all appropriate information and shall be signed by an authorized representative of the Contractor.

All requests for payment shall be submitted to the Division Business Officer's Office.

N.C. Department of Transportation Division Business Officer Address City, NC Zip

Invoices must be electronically scanned and the image is transmitted to the Purchasing Unit to verify payment. To avoid confusion and delay of payments, each invoice should have a unique Invoice Number. In addition, the invoice should be positively identified and associated with the Purchase Order including the Contract Number on the invoice.

Invoices shall not be processed for payment without the accompanying **FORM DBE-IS**. If there is no participation at the time of a planned pay request, enter "zero" or "no participation this period" and submit the form with the invoice.

DEBARMENT STATEMENT

The Contractor certifies and understands that by his/her signature on the Bid Form that he/she and the contracting firm he/she represents has not been banned, debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency.

BANKRUPTCY

The Department of Transportation, at its option, may terminate the contract upon filing by the Contractor of any petition for protection under the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Act.

NO MAJOR CONTRACT ITEMS

None of the items included in this contract will be major items.

NO SPECIALTY ITEMS

None of the items included in this contract will be specialty items (see Article 108-6 of the 2018 Standard Specifications).

BIDS OVER LIMIT

(08-01-16) SPD 01-400

In accordance with GS 136-28.1(b), if the total bid amount of the contract exceeds \$5.0 million, the bid will not be considered for award.

OUTSOURCING OUTSIDE THE USA

All work on consultant contracts, services contracts, and construction contracts shall be performed in the United States of America. No work shall be outsourced outside of the United States of America.

Outsourcing for the purpose of this provision is defined as the practice of subcontracting labor, work, services, staffing, or personnel to entities located outside of the United States.

The North Carolina Secretary of Transportation shall approve exceptions to this provision in writing.

EROSION, SILTATION, AND POLLUTION CONTROL:

The Contractor shall exercise every reasonable precaution and take all necessary measures throughout the life of the project to prevent erosion, siltation, and pollution in accordance with Section 107-13 of the *Standard Specifications*.

CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS:

(3-21-90) SP1 G85

The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (A) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (B) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, *Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying*, in accordance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by *Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code*. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The prospective participant also agrees by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require that the

language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION HOTLINE:

(11-22-94) 108-5 SPI G100

To report bid rigging activities call: 1-800-424-9071

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) operates the above toll-free hotline Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. eastern time. Anyone with knowledge of possible bid rigging, bidder collusion, or other fraudulent activities should use the hotline to report such activities.

The hotline is part of the DOT's continuing effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General. All information will be treated confidentially and caller anonymity will be respected.

CARGO PREFERENCE ACT:

(2-16-16)

Privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels transporting cargoes are subject to the Cargo Preference Act (CPA) of 1954 requirements and regulations found in 46 CFR 381.7. Contractors are directed to clause (b) of 46 CFR 381.7 as follows:

- (b) Contractor and Subcontractor Clauses. "Use of United States-flag vessels: The contractor agrees-
 - "(1) To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels.
 - (2) To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b) (1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590.
 - (3) To insert the substance of the provisions of this clause in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this contract."

BURNING RESTRICTIONS:

(7-1-95) 200, 210, 215 SP2 R05

Open burning is not permitted on any portion of the right-of-way limits established for this project. Do not burn the clearing, grubbing or demolition debris designated for disposal and generated from the project at locations within the project limits, off the project limits or at any waste or borrow sites in this county. Dispose of the clearing, grubbing and demolition debris by means other than burning, according to state or local rules and regulations.

REVISION TO FHWA-1273 CONCERNING TAP-FUNDED PROJECTS:

(10-15-13) SPI G190

Revise the Standard Special Provision FHWA-1273 Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts as follows:

Replace the last sentence in Section I.4 and the third sentence in the first paragraph of Section IV with the following:

Transportation Alternative Program (TAP)-funded projects shall have the same requirements as Federal-Aid highway projects except physical location exceptions will not apply.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DIVISIONS):

(10-16-07)(Rev.2-19-19) 102-15(J) SP1 G62

Description

The purpose of this Special Provision is to carry out the U.S. Department of Transportation's policy of ensuring nondiscrimination in the award and administration of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds. This provision is guided by 49 CFR Part 26.

Definitions

Additional DBE Subcontractors - Any DBE submitted at the time of bid that will <u>not</u> be used to meet the DBE goal. No submittal of a Letter of Intent is required.

Committed DBE Subcontractor - Any DBE submitted at the time of bid that is being used to meet the DBE goal by submission of a Letter of Intent. Or any DBE used as a replacement for a previously committed DBE firm.

Contract Goal Requirement - The approved DBE participation at time of award, but not greater than the advertised contract goal.

DBE Goal - A portion of the total contract, expressed as a percentage, that is to be performed by committed DBE subcontractor(s).

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) - A firm certified as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise through the North Carolina Unified Certification Program.

Goal Confirmation Letter - Written documentation from the Department to the bidder confirming the Contractor's approved, committed DBE participation along with a listing of the committed DBE firms.

Manufacturer - A firm that operates or maintains a factory or establishment that produces on the premises, the materials or supplies obtained by the Contractor.

Regular Dealer - A firm that owns, operates, or maintains a store, warehouse, or other establishment in which the materials or supplies required for the performance of the contract are bought, kept in stock, and regularly sold to the public in the usual course of business. A regular dealer engages in, as its principal business and in its own name, the purchase and sale or lease of the products in question. A regular dealer in such bulk items as steel, cement, gravel, stone, and petroleum products need not keep such products in stock, if it owns and operates distribution equipment for the products. Brokers and packagers are not regarded as manufacturers or regular dealers within the meaning of this section.

Replacement / Substitution – A full or partial reduction in the amount of work subcontracted to a committed (or an approved substitute) DBE firm.

North Carolina Unified Certification Program (NCUCP) - A program that provides comprehensive services and information to applicants for DBE certification, such that an applicant is required to apply only once for a DBE certification that will be honored by all recipients of USDOT funds in the state and not limited to the Department of Transportation only. The Certification Program is in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.

United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) - Federal agency responsible for issuing regulations (49 CFR Part 26) and official guidance for the DBE program.

Forms and Websites Referenced in this Provision

DBE Payment Tracking System - On-line system in which the Contractor enters the payments made to DBE subcontractors who have performed work on the project. https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/Vendor/PaymentTracking/

DBE-IS Subcontractor Payment Information - Form for reporting the payments made to all DBE firms working on the project. This form is for paper bid projects only. https://connect.ncdot.gov/business/Turnpike/Documents/Form%20DBE-IS%20Subcontractor%20Payment%20Information.pdf

RF-1 DBE Replacement Request Form - Form for replacing a committed DBE.

http://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/construction/Construction%20Forms/DBE%20MBE%20WBE%20Replacement%20Request%20Form.pdf

SAF Subcontract Approval Form - Form required for approval to sublet the contract. http://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/construction/Construction%20Forms/Subcontract%20Approval%20Form%20Rev.%202 012.zip

JC-1 *Joint Check Notification Form* - Form and procedures for joint check notification. The form acts as a written joint check agreement among the parties providing full and prompt disclosure of the expected use of joint checks.

http://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/construction/Construction%20Forms/Joint%20Check%20Notification%20Form.pdf

Letter of Intent - Form signed by the Contractor and the DBE subcontractor, manufacturer or regular dealer that affirms that a portion of said contract is going to be performed by the signed DBE for the estimated amount (based on quantities and unit prices) listed at the time of bid.

http://connect.ncdot.gov/letting/LetCentral/Letter%20of%20Intent%20to%20Perform%20as%20a%20Subcontractor.pdf

Listing of DBE Subcontractors Form - Form for entering DBE subcontractors on a project that will meet this DBE goal. This form is for paper bids only.

http://connect.ncdot.gov/municipalities/Bid%20Proposals%20for%20LGA%20Content/08%20DBE%20Subcontractors%20(Federal).docx

Subcontractor Quote Comparison Sheet - Spreadsheet for showing all subcontractor quotes in the work areas where DBEs quoted on the project. This sheet is submitted with good faith effort packages.

http://connect.ncdot.gov/business/SmallBusiness/Documents/DBE%20Subcontractor%20Quote%20Comparison%20Example.xls

DBE Goal

The following DBE goal for participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises is established for this contract:

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises zero %

- (A) If the DBE goal is more than zero, the Contractor shall exercise all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs participate in at least the percent of the contract as set forth above as the DBE goal.
- (B) *If the DBE goal is zero*, the Contractor shall make an effort to recruit and use DBEs during the performance of the contract. Any DBE participation obtained shall be reported to the Department.

Directory of Transportation Firms (Directory)

Real-time information is available about firms doing business with the Department and firms that are certified through NCUCP in the Directory of Transportation Firms. Only firms identified in the Directory as DBE certified shall be used to meet the DBE goal. The Directory can be found at the following link. https://www.ebs.nc.gov/VendorDirectory/default.html

The listing of an individual firm in the directory shall not be construed as an endorsement of the firm's capability to perform certain work.

Listing of DBE Subcontractors

At the time of bid, bidders shall submit <u>all</u> DBE participation that they anticipate to use during the life of the contract. Only those identified to meet the DBE goal will be considered committed, even though the listing shall include both committed DBE subcontractors and additional DBE subcontractors. Additional DBE subcontractor participation submitted at the time of bid will be used toward the Department's overall race-neutral goal. Only those firms with current DBE certification at the time of bid opening will be acceptable for listing in the bidder's submittal of DBE participation. The Contractor shall indicate the following required information:

(A) Electronic Bids

Bidders shall submit a listing of DBE participation in the appropriate section of the electronic submittal file.

- (1) Submit the names and addresses of DBE firms identified to participate in the contract. If the bidder uses the updated listing of DBE firms shown in the electronic submittal file, the bidder may use the dropdown menu to access the name and address of the DBE firm.
- (2) Submit the contract line numbers of work to be performed by each DBE firm. When no figures or firms are entered, the bidder will be considered to have no DBE participation.
- (3) The bidder shall be responsible for ensuring that the DBE is certified at the time of bid by checking the Directory of Transportation Firms. If the firm is not certified at the time of the bid-letting, that DBE's participation will not count towards achieving the DBE goal.

(B) Paper Bids

- (1) If the DBE goal is more than zero,
 - (a) Bidders, at the time the bid proposal is submitted, shall submit a listing of DBE participation, including the names and addresses on *Listing of DBE Subcontractors* contained elsewhere in the contract documents in order for the bid to be considered responsive. Bidders shall indicate the total dollar value of the DBE participation for the contract.
 - (b) If bidders have no DBE participation, they shall indicate this on the *Listing of DBE Subcontractors* by entering the word "None" or the number "0." This form shall be completed in its entirety. **Blank forms will not be deemed to represent zero participation**. Bids submitted that do not have DBE participation indicated on the appropriate form will not be read publicly during the opening of bids. The Department will not consider these bids for award and the proposal will be rejected.
 - (c) The bidder shall be responsible for ensuring that the DBE is certified at the time of bid by checking the Directory of Transportation Firms. If the firm is not certified at the time of the bid-letting, that DBE's participation will not count towards achieving the DBE goal.
- (2) If the DBE goal is zero, entries on the Listing of DBE Subcontractors are not required, however any DBE participation that is achieved during the project shall be reported in accordance with requirements contained elsewhere in the special provision.

DBE Prime Contractor

When a certified DBE firm bids on a contract that contains a DBE goal, the DBE firm is responsible for meeting the goal or making good faith efforts to meet the goal, just like any other bidder. In most cases, a DBE bidder on a contract will meet the DBE goal by virtue of the work it performs on the contract with its own forces. However, all the work that is performed by the DBE bidder and any other DBE subcontractors will count toward the DBE goal. The DBE bidder shall list itself along with any DBE subcontractors, if any, in order to receive credit toward the DBE goal.

For example, if the DBE goal is 45% and the DBE bidder will only perform 40% of the contract work, the prime will list itself at 40%, and the additional 5% shall be obtained through additional DBE participation with DBE subcontractors or documented through a good faith effort.

DBE prime contractors shall also follow Sections A or B listed under *Listing of DBE Subcontractor* just as a non-DBE bidder would.

Written Documentation - Letter of Intent

The bidder shall submit written documentation for each DBE that will be used to meet the DBE goal of the contract, indicating the bidder's commitment to use the DBE in the contract. This documentation shall be submitted on the Department's form titled *Letter of Intent*.

The documentation shall be received in the office of the Engineer no later than 2:00 p.m. of the fifth calendar day following opening of bids, unless the fifth day falls on Saturday, Sunday or an official state holiday. In that situation, it is due in the office of the Engineer no later than 10:00 a.m. on the next official state business day.

If the bidder fails to submit the Letter of Intent from each committed DBE to be used toward the DBE goal, or if the form is incomplete (i.e. both signatures are not present), the DBE participation will not count toward meeting the DBE goal. If the lack of this participation drops the commitment below the DBE goal, the Contractor shall submit evidence of good faith

efforts, completed in its entirety, to the Engineer no later than 2:00 p.m. on the eighth calendar day following opening of bids, unless the eighth day falls on Saturday, Sunday or an official state holiday. In that situation, it is due in the office of the Engineer no later than 10:00 a.m. on the next official state business day.

Submission of Good Faith Effort

If the bidder fails to meet or exceed the DBE goal the apparent lowest responsive bidder shall submit to the Department documentation of adequate good faith efforts made to reach the DBE goal.

One complete set and two copies of this information shall be received in the office of the Engineer no later than 2:00 p.m. of the fifth calendar day following opening of bids, unless the fifth day falls on Saturday, Sunday or an official state holiday. In that situation, it is due in the office of the Engineer no later than 10:00 a.m. on the next official state business day.

Note: Where the information submitted includes repetitious solicitation letters, it will be acceptable to submit a representative letter along with a distribution list of the firms that were solicited. Documentation of DBE quotations shall be a part of the good faith effort submittal. This documentation may include written subcontractor quotations, telephone log notations of verbal quotations, or other types of quotation documentation.

Consideration of Good Faith Effort for Projects with DBE Goals More Than Zero

Adequate good faith efforts mean that the bidder took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve the goal which, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness, could reasonably be expected to obtain sufficient DBE participation. Adequate good faith efforts also mean that the bidder actively and aggressively sought DBE participation. Mere *pro forma* efforts are not considered good faith efforts.

The Department will consider the quality, quantity, and intensity of the different kinds of efforts a bidder has made. Listed below are examples of the types of actions a bidder will take in making a good faith effort to meet the goal and are not intended to be exclusive or exhaustive, nor is it intended to be a mandatory checklist.

- (A) Soliciting through all reasonable and available means (e.g. attendance at pre-bid meetings, advertising, written notices, use of verifiable electronic means through the use of the NCDOT Directory of Transportation Firms) the interest of all certified DBEs who have the capability to perform the work of the contract. The bidder must solicit this interest within at least 10 days prior to bid opening to allow the DBEs to respond to the solicitation. Solicitation shall provide the opportunity to DBEs within the Division and surrounding Divisions where the project is located. The bidder must determine with certainty if the DBEs are interested by taking appropriate steps to follow up initial solicitations.
- (B) Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBEs in order to increase the likelihood that the DBE goals will be achieved.
 - (1) Where appropriate, break out contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation, even when the prime contractor might otherwise prefer to perform these work items with its own forces.
 - (2) Negotiate with subcontractors to assume part of the responsibility to meet the contract DBE goal when the work to be sublet includes potential for DBE participation (2nd and 3rd tier subcontractors).
- (C) Providing interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract in a timely manner to assist them in responding to a solicitation.
- (D) (1) Negotiating in good faith with interested DBEs. It is the bidder's responsibility to make a portion of the work available to DBE subcontractors and suppliers and to select those portions of the work or material needs consistent with the available DBE subcontractors and suppliers, so as to facilitate DBE participation. Evidence of such negotiation includes the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBEs that were considered; a description of the information provided regarding the plans and specifications for the work selected for subcontracting; and evidence as to why additional agreements could not be reached for DBEs to perform the work.
 - (2) A bidder using good business judgment would consider a number of factors in negotiating with subcontractors, including DBE subcontractors, and would take a firm's price and capabilities as well as

contract goals into consideration. However, the fact that there may be some additional costs involved in finding and using DBEs is not in itself sufficient reason for a bidder's failure to meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable. Also, the ability or desire of a prime contractor to perform the work of a contract with its own organization does not relieve the bidder of the responsibility to make good faith efforts. Bidding contractors are not, however, required to accept higher quotes from DBEs if the price difference is excessive or unreasonable.

- (E) Not rejecting DBEs as being unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their capabilities. The bidder's standing within its industry, membership in specific groups, organizations, or associates and political or social affiliations (for example, union vs. non-union employee status) are not legitimate causes for the rejection or non-solicitation of bids in the bidder's efforts to meet the project goal.
- (F) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, or insurance as required by the recipient or bidder.
- (G) Making efforts to assist interested DBEs in obtaining necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services.
- (H) Effectively using the services of available minority/women community organizations; minority/women contractors' groups; Federal, State, and local minority/women business assistance offices; and other organizations as allowed on a case-by-case basis to provide assistance in the recruitment and placement of DBEs. Contact within 7 days from the bid opening the Business Opportunity and Work Force Development Unit at BOWD@ncdot.gov to give notification of the bidder's inability to get DBE quotes.
- (I) Any other evidence that the bidder submits which shows that the bidder has made reasonable good faith efforts to meet the DBE goal.

In addition, the Department may take into account the following:

- (1) Whether the bidder's documentation reflects a clear and realistic plan for achieving the DBE goal.
- (2) The bidders' past performance in meeting the DBE goals.
- (3) The performance of other bidders in meeting the DBE goal. For example, when the apparent successful bidder fails to meet the DBE goal, but others meet it, you may reasonably raise the question of whether, with additional reasonable efforts the apparent successful bidder could have met the goal. If the apparent successful bidder fails to meet the DBE goal, but meets or exceeds the average DBE participation obtained by other bidders, the Department may view this, in conjunction with other factors, as evidence of the apparent successful bidder having made a good faith effort.

If the Department does not award the contract to the apparent lowest responsive bidder, the Department reserves the right to award the contract to the next lowest responsive bidder that can satisfy to the Department that the DBE goal can be met or that an adequate good faith effort has been made to meet the DBE goal.

Non-Good Faith Appeal

The Engineer will notify the contractor verbally and in writing of non-good faith. A contractor may appeal a determination of non-good faith made by the Goal Compliance Committee. If a contractor wishes to appeal the determination made by the Committee, they shall provide written notification to the Engineer. The appeal shall be made within 2 business days of notification of the determination of non-good faith.

Counting DBE Participation Toward Meeting DBE Goal

(A) Participation

The total dollar value of the participation by a committed DBE will be counted toward the contract goal requirement. The total dollar value of participation by a committed DBE will be based upon the value of work actually performed by the DBE and the actual payments to DBE firms by the Contractor.

(B) Joint Checks

Prior notification of joint check use shall be required when counting DBE participation for services or purchases

that involves the use of a joint check. Notification shall be through submission of Form JC-1 (*Joint Check Notification Form*) and the use of joint checks shall be in accordance with the Department's Joint Check Procedures.

(C) Subcontracts (Non-Trucking)

A DBE may enter into subcontracts. Work that a DBE subcontracts to another DBE firm may be counted toward the contract goal requirement. Work that a DBE subcontracts to a non-DBE firm does <u>not</u> count toward the contract goal requirement. If a DBE contractor or subcontractor subcontracts a significantly greater portion of the work of the contract than would be expected on the basis of standard industry practices, it shall be presumed that the DBE is not performing a commercially useful function. The DBE may present evidence to rebut this presumption to the Department. The Department's decision on the rebuttal of this presumption is subject to review by the Federal Highway Administration but is not administratively appealable to USDOT.

(D) Joint Venture

When a DBE performs as a participant in a joint venture, the Contractor may count toward its contract goal requirement a portion of the total value of participation with the DBE in the joint venture, that portion of the total dollar value being a distinct clearly defined portion of work that the DBE performs with its forces.

(E) Suppliers

A contractor may count toward its DBE requirement 60 percent of its expenditures for materials and supplies required to complete the contract and obtained from a DBE regular dealer and 100 percent of such expenditures from a DBE manufacturer.

(F) Manufacturers and Regular Dealers

A contractor may count toward its DBE requirement the following expenditures to DBE firms that are not manufacturers or regular dealers:

- (1) The fees or commissions charged by a DBE firm for providing a *bona fide* service, such as professional, technical, consultant, or managerial services, or for providing bonds or insurance specifically required for the performance of a DOT-assisted contract, provided the fees or commissions are determined to be reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees and commissions customarily allowed for similar services.
- (2) With respect to materials or supplies purchased from a DBE, which is neither a manufacturer nor a regular dealer, count the entire amount of fees or commissions charged for assistance in the procurement of the materials and supplies, or fees or transportation charges for the delivery of materials or supplies required on a job site (but not the cost of the materials and supplies themselves), provided the fees are determined to be reasonable and not excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services.

Commercially Useful Function

(A) DBE Utilization

The Contractor may count toward its contract goal requirement only expenditures to DBEs that perform a commercially useful function in the work of a contract. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE shall also be responsible with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material and installing (where applicable) and paying for the material itself. To determine whether a DBE is performing a commercially useful function, the Department will evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is actually performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, and any other relevant factors.

(B) DBE Utilization in Trucking

The following factors will be used to determine if a DBE trucking firm is performing a commercially useful function:

- (1) The DBE shall be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire trucking operation for which it is responsible on a particular contract, and there shall not be a contrived arrangement for the purpose of meeting DBE goals.
- (2) The DBE shall itself own and operate at least one fully licensed, insured, and operational truck used on the contract.
- (3) The DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services it provides on the contract using trucks it owns, insures, and operates using drivers it employs.
- (4) The DBE may subcontract the work to another DBE firm, including an owner-operator who is certified as a DBE. The DBE who subcontracts work to another DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services the subcontracted DBE provides on the contract.
- (5) The DBE may also subcontract the work to a non-DBE firm, including from an owner-operator. The DBE who subcontracts the work to a non-DBE is entitled to credit for the total value of transportation services provided by the non-DBE subcontractor not to exceed the value of transportation services provided by DBE-owned trucks on the contract. Additional participation by non-DBE subcontractors receives credit only for the fee or commission it receives as a result of the subcontract arrangement. The value of services performed under subcontract agreements between the DBE and the Contractor will not count towards the DBE contract requirement.
- (6) A DBE may lease truck(s) from an established equipment leasing business open to the general public. The lease must indicate that the DBE has exclusive use of and control over the truck. This requirement does not preclude the leased truck from working for others during the term of the lease with the consent of the DBE, so long as the lease gives the DBE absolute priority for use of the leased truck. This type of lease may count toward the DBE's credit as long as the driver is under the DBE's payroll.
- (7) Subcontracted/leased trucks shall display clearly on the dashboard the name of the DBE that they are subcontracted/leased to and their own company name if it is not identified on the truck itself. Magnetic door signs are not permitted.

DBE Replacement

When a Contractor has relied on a commitment to a DBE subcontractor (or an approved substitute DBE subcontractor) to meet all or part of a contract goal requirement, the contractor shall not terminate the DBE subcontractor for convenience. This includes, but is not limited to, instances in which the Contractor seeks to perform the work of the terminated subcontractor with another DBE subcontractor, a non-DBE subcontractor, or with the Contractor's own forces or those of an affiliate.

The Contractor must give notice in writing both by certified mail and email to the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to the Engineer of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute, and the reason for the request. The Contractor must give the DBE subcontractor five (5) business days to respond to the Contractor's Notice of Intent to Request Termination and/or Substitution. If the DBE subcontractor objects to the intended termination/substitution, the DBE, within five (5) business days must advise the Contractor and the Department of the reasons why the action should not be approved. The five-day notice period shall begin on the next business day after written notice is provided to the DBE subcontractor.

A committed DBE subcontractor may only be terminated after receiving the Department's written approval based upon a finding of good cause for the proposed termination and/or substitution. For purposes of this section, good cause shall include the following circumstances:

- (a) The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written contract;
- (b) The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the work of its subcontract in a way consistent with normal industry standards. Provided, however, that good cause does not exist if the failure or refusal of the DBE subcontractor to perform its work on the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the prime contractor;
- (c) The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the prime contractor's reasonable, nondiscriminatory bond requirements;

- (d) The listed DBE subcontractor becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit unworthiness;
- (e) The listed DBE subcontractor is ineligible to work on public works projects because of suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant to 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and 1,200 or applicable state law;
- (f) The listed DBE subcontractor is not a responsible contractor;
- (g) The listed DBE voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides written notice of withdrawal;
- (h) The listed DBE is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of work required;
- (i) A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the listed DBE contractor is unable to complete its work on the contract;
- (j) Other documented good cause that compels the termination of the DBE subcontractor. Provided, that good cause does not exist if the prime contractor seeks to terminate a DBE it relied upon to obtain the contract so that the prime contractor can self-perform the work for which the DBE contractor was engaged or so that the prime contractor can substitute another DBE or non-DBE contractor after contract award.

The Contractor shall comply with the following for replacement of a committed DBE:

(A) Performance Related Replacement

When a committed DBE is terminated for good cause as stated above, an additional DBE that was submitted at the time of bid may be used to fulfill the DBE commitment. A good faith effort will only be required for removing a committed DBE if there were no additional DBEs submitted at the time of bid to cover the same amount of work as the DBE that was terminated.

If a replacement DBE is not found that can perform at least the same amount of work as the terminated DBE, the Contractor shall submit a good faith effort documenting the steps taken. Such documentation shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- (1) Copies of written notification to DBEs that their interest is solicited in contracting the work defaulted by the previous DBE or in subcontracting other items of work in the contract.
- (2) Efforts to negotiate with DBEs for specific subbids including, at a minimum:
 - (a) The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of DBEs who were contacted.
 - (b) A description of the information provided to DBEs regarding the plans and specifications for portions of the work to be performed.
- (3) A list of reasons why DBE quotes were not accepted.
- (4) Efforts made to assist the DBEs contacted, if needed, in obtaining bonding or insurance required by the Contractor.

(B) Decertification Replacement

- (1) When a committed DBE is decertified by the Department after the SAF (Subcontract Approval Form) has been received by the Department, the Department will not require the Contractor to solicit replacement DBE participation equal to the remaining work to be performed by the decertified firm. The participation equal to the remaining work performed by the decertified firm will count toward the contract goal requirement.
- When a committed DBE is decertified prior to the Department receiving the SAF (*Subcontract Approval Form*) for the named DBE firm, the Contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to replace the DBE subcontractor with another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work to meet the DBE goal requirement. If a DBE firm is not found to do the same amount of work, a good faith effort must be submitted to NCDOT (see A herein for required documentation).

All requests for replacement of a committed DBE firm shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval on Form RF-1 (DBE Replacement Request). If the Contractor fails to follow this procedure, the Contractor may be disqualified from further bidding for a period of up to 6 months

Changes in the Work

When the Engineer makes changes that result in the reduction or elimination of work to be performed by a committed DBE,

the Contractor will not be required to seek additional participation. When the Engineer makes changes that result in additional work to be performed by a DBE based upon the Contractor's commitment, the DBE shall participate in additional work to the same extent as the DBE participated in the original contract work.

When the Engineer makes changes that result in extra work, which has more than a minimal impact on the contract amount, the Contractor shall seek additional participation by DBEs unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

When the Engineer makes changes that result in an alteration of plans or details of construction, and a portion or all of the work had been expected to be performed by a committed DBE, the Contractor shall seek participation by DBEs unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.

When the Contractor requests changes in the work that result in the reduction or elimination of work that the Contractor committed to be performed by a DBE, the Contractor shall seek additional participation by DBEs equal to the reduced DBE participation caused by the changes.

Reports and Documentation

A SAF (*Subcontract Approval Form*) shall be submitted for all work which is to be performed by a DBE subcontractor. The Department reserves the right to require copies of actual subcontract agreements involving DBE subcontractors.

When using transportation services to meet the contract commitment, the Contractor shall submit a proposed trucking plan in addition to the SAF. The plan shall be submitted prior to beginning construction on the project. The plan shall include the names of all trucking firms proposed for use, their certification type(s), the number of trucks owned by the firm, as well as the individual truck identification numbers, and the line item(s) being performed.

Within 30 calendar days of entering into an agreement with a DBE for materials, supplies or services, not otherwise documented by the SAF as specified above, the Contractor shall furnish the Engineer a copy of the agreement. The documentation shall also indicate the percentage (60% or 100%) of expenditures claimed for DBE credit.

Reporting Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Participation

The Contractor shall provide the Engineer with an accounting of payments made to all DBE firms, including material suppliers and contractors at all levels (prime, subcontractor, or second tier subcontractor). This accounting shall be furnished to the Engineer for any given month by the end of the following month. Failure to submit this information accordingly may result in the following action:

- (A) Withholding of money due in the next partial pay estimate; or
- (B) Removal of an approved contractor from the prequalified bidders' list or the removal of other entities from the approved subcontractors list.

While each contractor (prime, subcontractor, 2nd tier subcontractor) is responsible for accurate accounting of payments to DBEs, it shall be the prime contractor's responsibility to report all monthly and final payment information in the correct reporting manner.

Failure on the part of the Contractor to submit the required information in the time frame specified may result in the disqualification of that contractor and any affiliate companies from further bidding until the required information is submitted.

Failure on the part of any subcontractor to submit the required information in the time frame specified may result in the disqualification of that contractor and any affiliate companies from being approved for work on future projects until the required information is submitted.

Contractors reporting transportation services provided by non-DBE lessees shall evaluate the value of services provided during the month of the reporting period only.

At any time, the Engineer can request written verification of subcontractor payments.

The Contractor shall report the accounting of payments through the Department's DBE Payment Tracking System.

Failure to Meet Contract Requirements

Failure to meet contract requirements in accordance with Subarticle 102-15(J) of the 2018 Standard Specifications may be cause to disqualify the Contractor.

PROJECT SPECIAL PROVISIONS - ROADWAY

SCOPE

- 1) The Contractor shall provide labor, materials, equipment, transportation and services needed to dispose of or recycle hazardous waste, industrial waste materials and other regulated or non-regulated wastes routinely generated at the NCDOT facilities.
- 2) The Contractor shall provide labor, materials, equipment, transportation and services for the performance of hazardous and non-hazardous material management and disposal projects and emergency response activities on NCDOT facilities and right of ways.
- 3) The Contractor shall perform all work in accordance and compliance with all applicable federal, state and local regulatory requirements. The Contractor shall be responsible for the safe and legal disposal of all collected materials.

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) has fourteen Divisions, with at least one County Maintenance Yard in most of North Carolina's 100 counties. Other NCDOT facilities include, but are not limited to, Materials and Tests labs, the Ferry Division facilities, Construction offices and Bridge Maintenance facilities. NCDOT Right of Way (ROW) and road construction sites are also sources of hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation. These facilities are typically either classified as Small Quantity Generators (SQG) or Conditionally-Exempt Small Quantity Generators (CESQG) by definition under the United States Environmental Agency (USEPA) Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Regulated materials are routinely generated at NCDOT facilities or discovered on NCDOT ROW by NCDOT or its Contractors. This includes materials related to highway maintenance, construction activities, materials testing laboratories, materials discovered by NCDOT at properties acquired as part of highway construction projects, spills and illegal dumping on NCDOT ROW. For the most part, spills resulting from motor vehicle accidents on NCDOT ROW are covered by the insurance provider for the responsible party. When the responsible party insurance carrier does not provide emergency responders within an adequate timeframe, the selected Contractors under this contract may be called. The regulated waste materials listed below include both hazardous and non-hazardous waste as defined by USDOT Dangerous Goods Classifications and RCRA.

The Contractor shall comply with Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA – 40 CFR 261 - 265) and Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA - 29 CFR 1910 - 1926) regulations for employee training, and the handling, storage, labeling, recordkeeping, disposal and inspections of hazardous waste. The North Carolina Department of Environment Quality (NCDEQ) adopted RCRA as the North Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Rules and is responsible for enforcement. The "Hazardous Waste Compliance Manual for Generators of Hazardous Waste" is published by the Compliance Branch of the Division of Waste Management of NCDEQ, and can be found at https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/waste-management/hazardous-waste-section. Coordination with the NCDOT Division Hazardous Materials Manager (HMM) and the responsible NCDOT Project Engineer is required to maintain compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations.

Typical regulated materials generated or handled by NCDOT in the past have included:

- Spent, discarded and out of date chemicals and chemical mixtures including but not limited to: herbicides, aerosol cans, solvents, toner, paints, paint thinner, emulsion oil, diesel oil and gasoline
- Drainage pit sludge from vehicle service operations
- Tires, tanks and other waste materials
- Shop rags, used oil absorbent materials or pads and used oil filters
- Used paint filters and sludge from paint booths and the operation and maintenance of painting equipment
- Scrap wood treated with creosote or pentachlorophenol
- Contaminated soil or groundwater

- Paint chips and spent blast abrasive
- Mercury-containing bulbs, thermostats and mercury-containing switches
- Ballasts, capacitors and transformers from electrical equipment and distribution systems
- Illegally dumped hazardous and non-hazardous chemicals and other unknown waste materials

Specific waste streams destined for recycling versus disposal that are currently managed by other contracts, such as;

- Fluorescent light bulbs (State Term Contract No. 926B), http://www.pandc.nc.gov/926b.pdf
- Wet cell batteries (State Term Contract No. 060B) http://www.pandc.nc.gov/060b.pdf
- Non-functional Computer Monitors (State Term Contract No. 926C) http://www.pandc.nc.gov/926c.pdf

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Disposal of waste materials, performance of waste disposal projects and emergency response activities shall comply with all applicable state, federal or local regulatory requirements.

HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL

- 1) The Contractor shall be responsible for locating appropriate facilities for the management of waste materials, for completing any waste profile documentation required by the facility or state where the facility is located and for any costs incurred during the profiling process. The NCDOT reserves the right to make bulk shipments of Universal Waste (batteries, fluorescent lights, etc.) directly to a recycler or through a State contract and to utilize state or federal programs for reclaiming or recycling waste materials such as anti-freeze or used oils. Wastes shall be profiled and shipped directly to a waste recycling or disposal facility unless prior approval has been obtained from the NCDOT Contract Administrator (CA).
- 2) All documents, applications and correspondence concerning waste handled under this contract shall be submitted to the NCDOT CA or a designated NCDOT Point of Contact (POC) for review and approval prior to submittal to a disposal facility or regulatory agency. The CA or POC shall have three working days for review of all documents.
- 3) If feasible, the disposal method selected for each waste stream shall conform to the following prioritization, with preference from highest to lowest priority as applicable for each type of waste:
 - a) reclamation or recycling
 - b) incorporation into a fuels burning program
 - c) incineration
 - d) treatment or detoxification or fixation
 - e) land disposal

If requested, the Contractor shall provide information on the available disposal options for particular waste materials. Following review of the information provided, the CA will determine the preferred disposal option.

- 4) The CA or POC will review waste stream profile data for each waste at least annually. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reporting in an Excel workbook with a worksheet for each quarter, listing waste disposal actions by date, name, address, location, waste codes, job description, weights, manifest destination, final disposal facility information and other pertinent comments or information.
- 5) For new or onetime waste streams, the CA or POC will provide a description of the waste, Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS/SDS) and a proposed sampling plan, if necessary to the Contractors. The Contractors shall provide the following information within ten working days of receipt of the waste characterization information for the waste stream:

- a) the identity of the reclamation or disposal facility that will be utilized
- b) a description of the disposal method that will be used
- c) waste profile applications required by the facility and/or state where the facility is located
- d) documents needed to amend the waste disposal plan, if needed.
- 6) For existing waste streams, the Contractor shall provide;
 - a) documents required to amend disposal facility waste characterization information within five working days of receipt of waste analyses or other updated waste characterization information, and
 - b) documents required to change or add transporters or receiving facilities shall be provided at least five days prior to the scheduled shipment of an affected waste.

REMOVAL OF WASTE MATERIAL (GENERAL)

- 1) The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment and transportation to pack, label, load, transport and dispose of all hazardous materials and waste generated by NCDOT in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations.
- 2) The Contractor shall identify a project manager and alternate who will act as a point of contact for the NCDOT CA with regard to this contract.
- 3) The Contractor shall schedule shipment and pickup of waste material within 3 days of receipt of a written purchase order unless stated otherwise by the Department. If the shipment cannot be scheduled within the required timeframe, the Contractor shall provide in writing and within 24 hours, the reason for the delay and the anticipated date when the shipment will be made.
- 4) The NCDOT CA may perform inspections and/or audits of the Contractor, transporters or disposal facilities at his/her discretion.

MANIFEST /DOCUMENTATION OF DISPOSAL

- 1) The Contractor shall provide a properly completed manifest or other appropriate shipping documentation for each waste shipment. The manifest and/or any other documentation concerning the shipment (such as restricted waste notification forms required under 40 CFR Part 268 Land Disposal Restrictions) shall be provided to the HMM at least two working days prior to the scheduled shipment. Manifests shall be prepared in accordance with the 49 CFR 172.205, 40 CFR Part 262 and 761.208. For each waste stream on the manifest or shipping document, the waste management facility's approval number and applicable federal and state waste stream numbers shall be noted on the manifest. All documentation shall be typewritten or neatly printed with all copies legible. The Contractor shall ensure that all transporters used have all required EPA identification numbers, permits and licenses and are properly registered with the state of North Carolina. The CA will sign and date the generator's certification on the manifest or shipping document and return the generators copy with an original signature to the HMM. The waste management facility shall return a signed copy of the manifest or shipping document indicating receipt of the material to the CA within 35 days of the date that the waste is accepted by the initial transporter.
- 2) For all shipments of hazardous waste, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) material or whenever available for other types of waste, the Contractor shall provide certification of reclamation or disposal to the CA within 120 days of the shipment date. The certification shall include:
 - a) the identity of the disposal facility by name, address and EPA identification number,
 - b) the identity of the waste affected by the certification including reference to the manifest number for the shipment, and
 - c) a statement certifying disposition of the identified waste, including date(s) of disposal and identifying the process used and,

d) a certification (as defined in 40 CFR 260.10) signed by a representative of the disposal facility.

PACKAGING/LABELING/MARKING

- 1) Most wastes generated by NCDOT are placed or collected in 5, 30, 55 or 85 gallon drums which shall be removed by the Contractor. However, drums may not be full (50 gallons for liquid waste) and some wastes to be shipped will be in smaller DOT-shippable containers. The Contractor shall furnish containers if lab packs are needed or if wastes are to be decanted for shipment. The Contractor shall be responsible for proper disposal of empty containers generated by any decanting activities. Documentation concerning the disposal or management method that will be utilized for such containers shall be provided to the HMM upon request. Larger drums (85 gallon), tanks and roll-off boxes may also be used if necessary. All efforts shall be made to lab pack as efficiently and economically as possible, while still conforming to applicable regulations.
- 2) Containers needed for hazardous material management tasks, lab pack tasks and emergency clean-up operations shall be supplied by the Contractor at a cost not to exceed the rates in attached Bid Sheet. Costs for items not included in attached Bid Sheet shall be either the Contractor's standard rate or the Contractor's documented cost, by approval of the CA.
- 3) Before transporting any container of waste, the Contractor shall mark and label the containers in accordance with all applicable requirements in 40 CFR 262.32 and US Department of Transportation regulations in 49 CFR Part 172.

HANDLING/LOADING/TRANSPORTATION OF MATERIAL

- 1) NCDOT shall furnish forklift equipment to tailgate material/waste onto the transporter's truck if needed. Appropriate coordination with the NCDOT POC by phone or email, and using photographs of the site will determine the need for cranes or other equipment on the site prior to submittal of the cost proposal.
- 2) The Contractor shall schedule shipment dates and times with the NCDOT POC. Shipments shall not be scheduled on Saturdays, Sundays, state holidays, or any other day NCDOT facilities are closed. Shipments shall be scheduled so that all loading operations can be completed before 3:00 pm on the day the shipment occurs. Overtime shall be minimized and only charged if approved in advance by the CA.
- 3) The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper and safe handling, transportation and delivery of all hazardous material/waste consigned to him/her. This shall include but not be limited to:
 - a) transport all types of waste listed in this statement of work,
 - b) insuring that all trucks are equipped with adequate first aid, fire protection, personal safety and spill control equipment, and
 - c) coordinating unloading of material with the receiving facility and
 - d) appropriate storage and handling at all times.

ROUTINE REQUIREMENTS

- 1) <u>Waste shipments</u>: Waste material shall be removed upon request and arranged with the generator on a reasonable schedule. The Contractor shall complete the routine waste shipments within 3 business days after receipt of a written purchase order. The Contractor shall coordinate pick up times with the POC.
- 2) Support for projects involving hazardous material management: The Contractor may provide support for tasks or projects involving hazardous material management activities not associated with the shipment of waste material. The CA or POC will provide the Contractor with a written scope of work for each task or project. The Contractor shall respond in writing within ten days with a plan of action, a proposed schedule, and itemized cost proposal for the work. The cost proposal shall utilize the unit rates for labor, mileage, supplies and equipment in attached Bid Sheet. Cost for items or services not included in attached Bid Sheet shall be negotiated with the Contractor. NCDOT reserves the right to comment, request clarification or reject the proposal. Following acceptance of the Contractor's proposal by NCDOT POC or CA, the POC will issue a written purchase order. Unless noted otherwise in the purchase order, work shall begin

within ten days of issuance of the purchase order and proceed according to the approved plan of action and schedule until completion. The Contractor shall maintain daily logs documenting personnel activities and equipment and supplies used for the project. Completed logs shall be provided to the POC within 3 days of completion of the project.

EMERGENCY RESPONSE

1) In the event of an emergency response situation, the CA or the POC will notify the Contractor of the type and classification of the emergency. Notification will be made by phone or email or other means as necessary. The Contractor shall maintain a toll free emergency phone number and answering system 24 hours a day and 7 days a week. Classifications of emergency situations are described in the following paragraphs.

Traffic incidents involving a release or spill of hazardous materials or other materials requiring clean up require immediate response and mobilization in order to decrease roadway clearance times, return of traffic patterns to normal and reduce traffic backups, particularly on the Interstate Highways and near urban areas. In accordance with NC G.S. 20-161, Quick Clearance, NCDOT is authorized to do what is necessary to decrease traffic incident duration and clearance times even when emergency spill response is needed.

The Incident Commander (IC) at an accident site will provide a Notice to Proceed (NTP) to either the Responsible Party's (RP) Emergency Responder or in lieu of timely response, may call on the Contractor to provide emergency response and clean up within timeframes specified below. Every effort should be made by the Contractor to meet the specified timeframes. Contact information for the Contractor emergency response must be provided to the HMM, POC and will be distributed to IC offices statewide by NCDOT. When a RP is identified, NCDOT will bill the responsible party and or insurance company at market rates. The Contractor's emergency response personnel shall be trained and certified by the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and Incident Command System (ICS) as well as the forty (40) hour HAZWOPER. Documentation of this training or certifications shall be provided in the technical proposal.

- 2) Emergency Immediate response: In the event of an emergency situation requiring immediate waste disposal or remedial action activities, the Contractor shall respond with an NCDOT project manager within 2 hours and response personnel and equipment shall be required to be on-site within 4 hours from time of initial notification. The Contractor shall be required to meet this response timeframe on a 24 hours a day, 7 days a week basis. The response time deadline shall begin upon notification. The scope of the Contractor's initial response shall be discussed with and approved by the CA/POC prior to the Contractor's mobilization, preferably at the time of notification. Within 24 hours of the Contractor's initial response, the Contractor's project manager shall supply the POC/CA with a plan of action and cost proposal, utilizing the rates in attached Bid Sheet, for the required response activities. Cost for items or services not included in attached Bid Sheet shall either be the Contractor's documented standard rate or the Contractor's documented cost. The Contractor's level of effort shall not exceed that in the plan of action and cost proposal without receiving prior approval from the CA/POC. The Contractor shall maintain daily logs documenting personnel activities and equipment and/or supplies used for the project. Completed logs shall be provided to the CA/POC within 3 days of completion of the project. Cost proposals, daily logs and invoices will be reviewed by the NCDOT POC/CA for efficiency, cost-effectiveness and compliance with the bid rates in the contract.
- 3) Non- Emergency (Routine response): For non-emergency situations that do not require immediate mobilization of Contractor resources, the Contractor's project manager shall coordinate with the CA/POC to develop a plan of action and cost proposal within five days of the request, utilizing the rates in attached Bid Sheet, for the incident. Cost for items or service not included in attached Bid Sheet shall be either the Contractor's documented standard rate or the Contractor's documented cost. Response time shall begin upon mobilization of Contractor resources for response activities. Once response activities begin, Contractor services shall be available 24-hours a day, seven days a week, if needed based on necessary response activities for the incident. The Contractor's level of effort shall not exceed that in the plan of action and cost proposal without receiving prior approval from the CA/POC. The Contractor shall maintain daily logs for documenting personnel activities and equipment and/or supplied for the project. Completed logs shall be provided to the CA/POC within 3 days of completion of the project. Cost proposals, daily logs and invoices will be reviewed by the NCDOT POC/CA for efficiency, cost-effectiveness and compliance with the bid rates in the contract.
- 4) **On-site Spills**: If a spill occurs as a direct result of or during the Contractor's on-site activities, the Contractor shall immediately:

- a) secure the area to contain the spill if possible,
- b) notify the NCDOT POC,
- c) notify the CA if possible and
- d) proceed with clean-up of the spill in a timely manner.

The Contractor shall be responsible for all costs associated with clean-up of spills which are caused by activities or factors while the waste is under his/her control.

5) **Off-site Incidents**: The Contractor shall comply with the US DOT, EPA, State and any other regulatory requirements concerning reporting and remediation of accidental discharges and spills of NCDOT waste materials which occur off-site. The Contractor shall notify the CA/POC within 2 hours of the incident and provide a complete written report concerning the incident and remedial action taken to the POC within 7 days of the incident. NCDOT will not be held responsible for costs associated with the improper handling, storage or transportation of any waste materials by the Contractor.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN REQUIREMENTS

If required by the nature of the work being performed or the statement of work for a particular project, the Contractor shall prepare a site- specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) in accordance with OSHA requirements.

SALVAGE

- 1) The Contractor will be allowed to salvage any or all unused waste material products to be shipped in accordance with the contract for the purpose of use or resale.
- 2) The Contractor shall notify the CA of the intention to salvage any material (such as scrap metal) within ten days of receipt of the waste characterization information. A Bill of Lading or similar document reflecting the identity of the material and its destination shall be provided prior to transportation of the material off-site. A copy of the Bill of Lading or similar document certifying receipt of the material by the receiving facility shall be returned to the CA/POC within ten days of shipment.

QUALITY PROVISIONS

- 1) Any requested changes to the Contractor's project manager and alternate or subcontracted firms described in the Contractor's proposal must be submitted in writing to the CA and must include the applicable qualification information required in Section 4.0. The CA will provide written concurrence or non-concurrence following a technical review of the information submitted.
- 2) The Contractor shall be required to perform a compliance audit of transporters and waste management facilities at least annually. The audit shall be conducted utilizing a protocol which, at a minimum, addresses management activities and applicable regulatory requirements for the type of activities being evaluated and shall include a site visit. However, a site visit may not be required for infrequently used transporters and waste management facilities receiving small amounts of waste where the Contractor can demonstrate compliance to the CA by utilizing other data, such as recent EPA inspection reports.
- 3) The waste disposal method identified for a particular waste may not be changed without obtaining written approval from the CA. A request to change a disposal method must include a written justification explaining the reason for the change and be documented with updated information required in the Technical Proposal Information in Section 4.0.
- 4) Except for transportation services, all work at NCDOT facilities will be conducted by employees of the Contractor and shall not be subcontracted unless use of sub-contractor personnel has been justified in the Contractor's plan of action for a specific project and prior written concurrence has been obtained from the CA.

STOP FEES

REGION = Divisions grouped by geographic proximity. Specific counties in each region are listed in Attachment A.

STOP FEE = A fee per pick up or collection of waste, not to exceed bid price, per Region, which includes transportation and one driver for 1 to 30 55-gallon drums, or equivalent.

TIME CRITICAL STOP FEE = A fee per pickup, not to exceed bid price, per Region, within 24-hours of request by DOT representative which includes transportation and one driver for 1 to 30-55 gallon drums or equivalent.

All FUEL SURCHARGES and DRIVER HOURLY RATES are included within the Stop Fee rate.

Demobilization and transport charges for bulk shipments to final disposal facility should be included in the loaded mile rate on the attached Bid Sheet.

TECHNICAL SERVICES

<u>Project Manager</u>: This individual will be the primary contact between the NCDOT and Contractor, and will manage all waste and remedial activities completed during the term of the contract, in specific adherence to contract pricing, except in cases where prior written approval by NCDOT is provided. The Project Manager should have knowledge and experience in areas related to environmental remediation. [Training requirements include EPA-RCRA (8-hour minimum), DOT HAZMAT (8-hour minimum), OSHA 24-hour HAZWOPER, 8-hour OSHA Incident Commander, and other job-specific training requirements].

<u>Technician</u>: Remedial site Labor. [Training requirements include EPA-RCRA (8-hour minimum), DOT HAZMAT (8-hour minimum), OSHA 24-hour HAZWOPER, and other job-specific training requirements].

<u>Chemist</u>: Classifies, profiles, and packages for shipment, all wastes generated by the NCDOT. [Training requirements include EPA-RCRA (8-hour minimum), DOT HAZMAT (8-hour minimum), OSHA 24-hour HAZWOPER, and other job-specific training requirements].

<u>Equipment Operator</u>: Operates heavy equipment. [Training requirements include EPA-RCRA (8-hour minimum), DOT HAZMAT (8-hour minimum), OSHA 24-hour HAZWOPER, and other job-specific training requirements (heavy equipment training)].

All technical personnel employed by the Contractor during the term of the contract will be medically monitored on a biannual (2-year) basis, and will receive job-specific monitoring, if necessary. Training certificates and medical monitoring documentation (including respiratory fit-test records) will be made available on request to the NCDOT CA prior to the commencement of activities under this contract, and thereafter on a yearly basis for the term of the contract. It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to ensure compliance with all necessary training requirements of 40 CFR, 49 CFR, and 29 CFR for its employees as well as all subcontractors utilized for NCDOT activities.

Timesheets denoting employee name, date(s) and hours worked, specific job location (including NCDOT Division Number) will be required with invoicing for approval and payment.

Daily overtime is allowed only with the permission of the CA and is 1-1/2 times the regular hourly rate for the work before 8:00 am, or after 5:00 pm. Saturday and Sunday work are also billable at 1-1/2 times the hourly rate with permission of CA.

The cost for a driver (straight frame/LTL drum loads and bulk transportation) should be included in the "Stop Fee" rates for transportation of wastes in the attached Bid Sheet.

LABORATORY ANALYSIS

All laboratory costs will be based on a turnaround time of 14 calendar days for sample analyses. The following multipliers can be utilized to calculate rush turnaround times: 24-hour - 2.0; 48-hour - 1.5; 5-day - 1.25.

Each price quote shall include costs for the appropriate sample container(s) and preservatives as required for each specific analysis in accordance with EPA Guidelines. All analytical results shall be reported in values consistent with Standard Operating Procedures for the laboratory analyzing the sample(s), and be accompanied by requisite QA/QC data. All testing will be completed by an NCDEQ certified laboratory utilizing specified methodology, or equivalent EPA approved methods. Only those analyses necessary for the classification of wastes (for disposal purposes) will be approved for use by the CA.

The identification of unknown waste streams will be initially completed using a Haz-Cat® Kit or equivalent field testing method(s) and generator knowledge regarding waste onsite. Certified analytical data will only be required and billable to NCDOT as a method for final determination of a waste based on initial field analysis. All activities conducted by the Contractor in the determination of waste characteristics will be documented for review by the NCDOT.

DISPOSAL – FUEL BLENDING AND LANDFILLS

All NCDOT waste will be treated in accordance with 40 CFR, 268 Land Disposal Restriction at NCDOT approved facilities. All Universal Waste will be recycled and carry no RCRA waste codes to aid the NCDOT in its Waste Minimization Program. The Contractor is responsible for performing compliance audits for all facilities utilized by the NCDOT prior to shipment of NCDOT waste. All Transfer, Storage, and Disposal Facilities, Solid Waste Management Facilities and recyclers will be audited for compliance history, financial stability, in addition to treatment and disposal operations management. The Contractor will provide the CA or POC with complete audit packages for all facilities prior to shipment of waste from NCDOT sites.

The Contractor will provide to the CA or POC a list of transporters prior to shipment of NCDOT waste. The Contractor is responsible for auditing each transporter, particularly with regard to all necessary permits and certifications required within the 49 CFR and any other applicable state and local regulations. All transporters handling hazardous waste (loading, offloading, transporting) will have the necessary training and NCDMV (or State equivalent as determined by each State) certifications and endorsements. Any violations received by Contractor personnel during transportation of waste or related transportation for remedial or emergency activities will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

NCDOT has audited and approved for final treatment and disposal numerous TSD facilities within the United States. All waste shipments will be manifested directly from the NCDOT Site to the final TSDF at all times unless previously approved by the CA or POC. At no time during the life of the contract, will the Contractor transport or dispose of NCDOT waste (nonhazardous, Universal, or hazardous) at a TSDF or recycling facility not approved by the NCDOT prior to shipment. The CA or POC will review all audit packages submitted by Contractor and any additional facilities the Contractor recommends using the audit package and a written request for review and approval. Certificates of Disposal from the final TSDF will be required within 60 days of pickup date from NCDOT site. If a Permitted RCRA Storage Facility is an approved facility for NCDOT waste, a Certificate of Acceptance will be required within 60 days of pickup of waste with final Certificate of Disposal within 365 days of waste pickup.

All materials transported under this contract will be accompanied by shipping documentation as required by 40 CFR and 49 CFR for waste tracking purposes. Any materials not requiring a manifest will be transported with a Bill of Lading or equivalent notating a minimum of the materials origination location, size/quantity, packaging, final destination (with physical address) and common name. All shipping documents will be tracked by the Contractor and will provide the final destination and date transported. It is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure all NCDOT site addresses area correct and the Division's HMM receives the final copy of shipping documents. If required by 40 CFR 268 a Land Restriction Notice will be utilized.

Contractor is responsible for supplying all necessary labels, placards, shipping documents including, but not limited to:

manifests, Land Disposal Notifications, profiles, re-certification, approval records of waste streams, and Certificates of Disposal for all materials managed under this contract for compliance with 40 CFR and 49 CFR regulations. If necessary, the contractor will apply for, and manage EPA ID Numbers for NCDOT sites. The Contractor will provide this information to the CA or POC for compliance with all 40 CFR 262 standards.

LAB PACK WASTE TREATMENT

Two treatment methods will be utilized when managing lab pack waste generated by the NCDOT. All regulated waste will be packaged in accordance with 49 CFR requirements especially in regard to lab pack requirements. In addition, the Contractor will pack all waste within the final TSD facility lab pack procedures and acceptance procedures. The Contractor will make every effort to package waste in appropriate size containers to ensure the most economical method of disposal for the NCDOT. Loose pack and Lab pack waste containers must be accompanied by a "Pack Sheet" denoting the waste name, quantity, codes, and generator location. The NCDOT will require that pack sheets for Lab pack and Loose pack Containers accompany the manifest to the final destination. The pack sheets will be supplied by the Contractor in accordance with all manifest requirements to the NCDOT.

Materials will be treated utilizing the treatment method as outlined in 40 CFR 268. If multiple treatment options are available, the Contractor will determine the final destination to a NCDOT approved facility.

RECYCLING

If a waste is classified as Universal by 40 CFR requirements, recycling will be utilized as the primary form of treatment and disposal to aid in the NCDOT Waste Minimization Program. The Contractor will notify the CA or POC if Universal Waste is not recycled with a written notice including the final destination of waste with shipping documentation and a summary of events. Additional recycling options will be priced on a case by case basis, with approval by the CA or POC.

INVESTIGATION DERIVED WASTE

The Contractor may assist NCDOT with the management and disposal of investigation derived waste (IDW) generated during various hazardous waste site investigations at NCDOT facilities, other NCDOT sites, or within NCDOT ROW. The Contractor will follow all USEPA, State, and local regulations and safety requirements associated with the management and disposal of IDW. The Contractor will follow RCRA regulations on storage of hazardous waste including ensuring accumulation start dates are identified on all drums or containers used to hold IDW. Hazardous IDW will be kept segregated from non-hazardous IDW to minimize the volume of hazardous IDW that must be properly managed, including hazardous IDW containerizing, labeling, manifesting, and shipping to a permitted treatment or disposal facility. IDW disposal options may be included in a written site-specific project Sampling and Analysis Plan or Quality Assurance Project Plan; however, the Contractor is responsible for coordinating with the POC on all disposal options of hazardous and non-hazardous IDW, with the POC providing approval for the chosen disposal options.

MEDICAL WASTE

The Contractor will follow NCDEQ Division of Waste Management guidelines and requirements for packaging, storing, transporting, treatment and disposal of medical waste. Examples of medical waste found on NCDOT ROW include, but are not limited to, illegally dumped used needles and syringes and related drug paraphernalia, as well as other blood or bodily fluids from human beings or animals. If regulated medical waste is mixed with hazardous waste, and cannot be separated from the hazardous waste, then the Contractor will follow hazardous waste guidelines for proper disposal of mixed waste; as hazardous waste treatment and disposal requirements exceed NCDEQ Division of Waste Management rules for treatment and disposal.

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

Measurement and payment will be made of each item listed. The payment will include pick-up, removal, storage, disposal and the container, all applicable state surcharges, taxes and disposal facility handling fees.

All surcharges incurred from off-spec materials will be the responsibility of the contractor - these surcharges cannot be charged to the NCDOT.

EQUIPMENT CONDITIONS

The Contractor shall furnish equipment of sufficient type, capacity, and quantity to safely and efficiently perform the work as specified in the Project Special Provisions. All vehicles used by the Contractor must be performance worthy by visual and operational inspection. All vehicles, including trailers, used should be properly equipped with lighting per Roadway Standard Drawing 1165.01 Sheet 1 of 1. Lights shall be mounted as high as possible on trailers to enhance visibility. The Contractor shall display the company name on each vehicle.

All equipment used shall be commercial grade and of sufficient size to complete tasks effectively and in a timely manner. All equipment shall be in good working order capable of being used as originally intended, including all guards and safety attachments. All equipment shall conform to the prevailing OSHA Standards. All personnel shall be properly trained and qualified to operate the piece of equipment to which they are assigned. The Contractor shall operate the equipment in a safe manner so as not to create a hazard to the traveling public or risks that may cause injury, health or safety risks, or damage to assets. The equipment shall not be parked within the State Highway System ROW overnight or at other times when work has been suspended, unless approved by the POC or Engineer.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the equipment provided in this contract at all times and at all locations during the term of the contract. The Contractor shall have no claim against the NCDOT for any expense involving damage or loss to the Contractor's equipment (including vandalism, theft, fire and acts of God, etc.) arising out of, or relating to, work performed under this agreement.

EQUIPMENT IDLING GUIDELINES:

(1-19-21) 107 SP1 G096

Exercise reduced fuel consumption and reduced equipment emissions during the construction of all work associated with this contract. Employees engaged in the construction of this project should turn off vehicles when stopped for more than thirty (30) minutes and off-highway equipment should idle no longer than fifteen (15) consecutive minutes.

These guidelines for turning off vehicles and equipment when idling do not apply to:

- 1. Idling when queuing.
- 2. Idling to verify the vehicle is in safe operating condition.
- 3. Idling for testing, servicing, repairing or diagnostic purposes.
- 4. Idling necessary to accomplish work for which the vehicle was designed (such as operating a crane, mixing concrete, etc.).
- 5. Idling required to bring the machine system to operating temperature.
- 6. Emergency vehicles, utility company, construction, and maintenance vehicles where the engines must run to perform needed work.
- 7. Idling to ensure safe operation of the vehicle.
- 8. Idling when the propulsion engine is providing auxiliary power for other than heating or air conditioning. (such as hydraulic systems for pavers)
- 9. When specific traffic, safety, or emergency situations arise.
- 10. If the ambient temperature is less than 32 degrees Fahrenheit. Limited idling to provide for the safety of vehicle occupants (e.g. to run the heater).
- 11. If the ambient temperature is greater than 90 degrees Fahrenheit. Limited idling to provide for the safety of vehicle occupants of off-highway equipment (e.g. to run the air conditioning) no more than 30 minutes.
- 12. Diesel powered vehicles may idle for up to 30 minutes to minimize restart problems.

Any vehicle, truck, or equipment in which the primary source of fuel is natural gas or electricity is exempt from the idling limitations set forth in this special provision.

PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY

The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection from his activities of all public and private property on and adjacent to the work and shall use every reasonable precaution necessary to prevent damage or injury thereto. The Contractor shall use suitable precautions to prevent damage to pipes, conduits and other underground structures, and to poles, wires, cables and other overhead structures, and to plantings.

COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS

The Department reserves the right at any time to contract for and perform other or additional work on or near the work covered by the contract. When separate or additional contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each Contractor shall conduct his work so as not to interfere with or hinder the progress or completion of the work being performed by other Contractors. Contractors working within the limits of the same project shall cooperate with each other. Each Contractor shall conduct his operations in such a manner as to avoid damaging any work being performed by others or which others have completed.

The Department will under no circumstances be liable for any claim for additional compensation due to acts of one Contractor holding up the work of another. The Department will under no circumstances be liable for any damages experienced by one Contractor as a result of the presence and operations of other Contractors working within the limits of the same project.

DAMAGES

The Contractor shall be held liable for all damage done, as a result of his operation or his Subcontractors, to fixed objects such as, but not limited to, fences, posts, roadway surfaces, shoulders, guardrail, drainage structure, signs, pavement markers, utilities, and all vegetation including turf, trees, shrubs, flower beds and desirable natural growth. Damage shall include among other things; skinning, scraping, breaking of tree limbs or gouging of trees or shrubs, and rutting, scalping or tearing turf.

Costs associated with damages caused by the Contractor to plant material will be assessed based on current cost to replace with like material of equal size or an equivalent combination. Such cost shall be deducted from the Contractors monthly invoice. All turf damage repairs shall be made by the Contractor as herein specified. Seed shall meet purity and germination requirements as specified by the POC or Engineer. Only friable topsoil shall be used to fill any depressions, ruts, etc., prior to seeding. All other property damage will be assessed for actual replacement costs including labor, materials, and equipment.

Cost associated with damages caused by the Contractor's operation shall be deducted from invoice payments or the Contractor will be required to repair the damages at his cost as directed by the POC or Engineer. This is in addition to any compensation reduction assessed as a result of poor or non-performance of duties outlined in this contract.

Contractor is responsible for any injury or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property by reason of any act of the Contractor, Subcontractor, its agents or employees, in the performance of the contract.

Z-2

STANDARD SPECIAL PROVISIONS

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS – TERMINATION OF CONTRACTS

(5-20-08)

General Statute 143C-6-11. (h) Highway Appropriation is hereby incorporated verbatim in this contract as follows:

(h) Amounts Encumbered. – Transportation project appropriations may be encumbered in the amount of allotments made to the Department of Transportation by the Director for the estimated payments for transportation project contract work to be performed in the appropriation fiscal year. The allotments shall be multiyear allotments and shall be based on estimated revenues and shall be subject to the maximum contract authority contained in *General Statute 143C-6-11(c)*. Payment for transportation project work performed pursuant to contract in any fiscal year other than the current fiscal year is subject to appropriations by the General Assembly. Transportation project contracts shall contain a schedule of estimated completion progress, and any acceleration of this progress shall be subject to the approval of the Department of Transportation provided funds are available. The State reserves the right to terminate or suspend any transportation project contract, and any transportation project contract shall be so terminated or suspended if funds will not be available for payment of the work to be performed during that fiscal year pursuant to the contract. In the event of termination of any contract, the contractor shall be given a written notice of termination at least 60 days before completion of scheduled work for which funds are available. In the event of termination, the contractor shall be paid for the work already performed in accordance with the contract specifications.

Payment will be made on any contract terminated pursuant to the special provision in accordance with Subarticle 108-13(E) of the 2018 Standard Specifications.

PLANT AND PEST QUARANTINES

(Imported Fire Ant, Gypsy Moth, Witchweed, Emerald Ash Borer, Guava Root Knot Nematode, And Other Noxious Weeds)
(3-18-03) (Rev. 5-21-19)
Z-04a

Within Quarantined Area

This project may be within a county regulated for plant and/or pests. If the project or any part of the Contractor's operations is located within a quarantined area, thoroughly clean all equipment prior to moving out of the quarantined area. Comply with federal/state regulations by obtaining a certificate or limited permit for any regulated article moving from the quarantined area.

Originating in a Quarantined County

Obtain a certificate or limited permit issued by the N.C. Department of Agriculture/United States Department of Agriculture. Have the certificate or limited permit accompany the article when it arrives at the project site.

Contact

Contact the N.C. Department of Agriculture/United States Department of Agriculture at 1-800-206-9333, 919-707-3730, or https://www.ncagr.gov/plantindustry/Plant/quaran/table2.htm to determine those specific project sites located in the quarantined area or for any regulated article used on this project originating in a quarantined county.

Regulated Articles Include

- 1. Soil, sand, gravel, compost, peat, humus, muck, and decomposed manure, separately or with other articles. This includes movement of articles listed above that may be associated with cut/waste, ditch pulling, and shoulder cutting.
- 2. Plants with roots including grass sod.
- 3. Plant crowns and roots.
- 4. Bulbs, corms, rhizomes, and tubers of ornamental plants.
- 5. Hay, straw, fodder, and plant litter of any kind.
- 6. Clearing and grubbing debris.
- 7. Used agricultural cultivating and harvesting equipment.
- 8. Used earth-moving equipment.
- 9. Any other products, articles, or means of conveyance, of any character, if determined by an inspector to present a hazard of spreading imported fire ant, gypsy moth, witchweed, emerald ash borer, guava root knot nematode, or other noxious weeds.

ERRATA

(10-16-18) (Rev.1-15-19) Z-4

Revise the 2018 Standard Specifications as follows:

Division 6

Page 6-7, Article 609-1 DESCRIPTION, line 29, replace article number "609-10" with "609-9".

Division 7

Page 7-27, Article 725-1 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT, line 4, replace article number "725-1" with "724-4".

Page 7-28, Article 725-1 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT, line 10, replace article number "725-1" with "725-3".

Division 10

Page 10-78, Article 1056-4 GEOTEXTILES, TABLE 1056-1, Permittivity, Type 2, replace "Table 6^D" with "Table 7^D" and Permittivity, Type 3^B, replace "Table 7^D" with "Table 8^D".

Page 10-162, Article 1080-50 PAINT FOR VERTICAL MARKERS, line 1, replace article number "1080-50" with "1080-10".

Page 10-162, Article 1080-61 EPOXY RESIN FOR REINFORCING STEEL, line 5, replace article number "1080-61" with "1080-11"

Page 10-162, Article 1080-72 ABRASIVE MATERIALS FOR BLAST CLEANING STEEL, line 22, replace article number "1080-72" with "1080-12".

Page 10-163, Article 1080-83 FIELD PERFORMANCE AND SERVICES, line 25, replace article number "1080-83" with "1080-13".

Division 17

Page 17-15, Article 1715-4 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT, lines 42-44, replace the second sentence with the following: An example is an installation of a single 1.25 inch HDPE conduit would be paid as:

Directional Drill (1)(1.25") Linear Foot

MINORITY AND FEMALE EMPLOYMENT REQUIREMENTS

Z-7

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENTS FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE NUMBER 11246)

1. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, see as shown on the attached sheet entitled "Employment Goals for Minority and Female participation".

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and nonfederally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its effort to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

2. As used in this Notice and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is the county or counties shown on the cover sheet of the proposal form and contract.

EMPLOYMENT GOALS FOR MINORITY AND FEMALE PARTICIPATION

Economic Areas

Area 023 29.7%
Bertie County
Camden County
Chowan County
Gates County
Hertford County
Pasquotank County
Perquimans County

Area 024 31.7%
Beaufort County
Carteret County
Craven County
Dare County
Edgecombe County
Green County
Halifax County
Hyde County
Jones County
Lenoir County
Martin County

Nash County Northampton County Pamlico County Pitt County Tyrrell County Washington County Wayne County Wilson County

Area 025 23.5% Columbus County Duplin County Onslow County Pender County Area 026 33.5%
Bladen County
Hoke County
Richmond County
Robeson County
Sampson County
Scotland County

Area 027 24.7%
Chatham County
Franklin County
Granville County
Harnett County
Johnston County
Lee County
Person County
Vance County
Warren County

Area 028 15.5%
Alleghany County
Ashe County
Caswell County
Davie County
Montgomery County
Moore County
Rockingham County
Surry County
Watauga County
Wilkes County

Area 029 15.7%
Alexander County
Anson County
Burke County
Cabarrus County
Caldwell County
Catawba County
Cleveland County
Iredell County
Lincoln County
Polk County
Rowan County
Rutherford County
Stanly County

Area 0480 8.5% Buncombe County Madison County

Area 030 6.3%
Avery County
Cherokee County
Clay County
Graham County
Haywood County
Henderson County
Jackson County
McDowell County
Macon County
Mitchell County
Swain County
Transylvania County
Yancey County

SMSA Areas

Area 5720 26.6% Currituck County

Area 9200 20.7% Brunswick County New Hanover County

Area 2560 24.2% Cumberland County Area 6640 22.8%
Durham County
Orange County
Wake County

Area 1300 16.2% Alamance County Area 3120 16.4%

Davidson County

Forsyth County

Guilford County

Randolph County

Stokes County

Yadkin County

Area 1520 18.3%
Gaston County
Mecklenburg County
Union County

Goals for Female

Participation in Each Trade

(Statewide) 6.9%

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL - AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

FHWA - 1273 Electronic Version - May 1, 2012

Z-8

- I. General
- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Nonsegregated Facilities
- IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- X. Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and Debarment Requirements
- XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying

ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris
removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase
orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract).

- Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract.
- 3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors.

II. NONDISCRIMINATION

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60,

29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 CFR 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

- 1. **Equal Employment Opportunity:** Equal employment opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627,
 - 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to
 - 23 U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:
 - a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract.
 - b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:
 "It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."
- 2. EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of

- effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
- 3. **Dissemination of Policy:** All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
 - a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer.
 - b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
 - c. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.
 - d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
 - e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- 4. **Recruitment:** When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
 - a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
 - b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
 - c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- 5. **Personnel Actions:** Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
 - a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
 - b. The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
 - c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
 - d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance. In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- 7. **Unions:** If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
 - a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
 - b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.
 - c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
 - d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.
- 8. **Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities:** The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there under. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.
 - a. The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
 - b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b):

- a. The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency deems appropriate.
- 11. **Records and Reports:** The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
 - a. The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:
 - (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-minority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
 - (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and
 - (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women;
 - b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more.

The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location, under the contractor's control, where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size). The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to other projects.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

1. Minimum wages

a. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be

easily seen by the workers.

- b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
 - (2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
 - (3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
 - (4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a

separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding. The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and basic records

- a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under
 - 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the contracting agency. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/ wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency.
 - (2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
 - (i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and complete;
 - (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
 - (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
 - (3) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section.
 - (4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and trainees

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL). Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed.

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL). Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work

performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid firinge benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.
- d. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.
- Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this
 contract.
- Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- 7. Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- 8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- 9. **Disputes concerning labor standards.** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in
 - 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- 10. Certification of eligibility.
 - a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
 - b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
 - c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section.
- 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section.
- 4. **Subcontracts.** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this section.

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.116).
 - a. The term "perform work with its own organization" refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees

from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions:

- (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees;
- (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;
- (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and
- (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract.
- 2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.
- 3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract.
- 5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements.

VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635).
 The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.
- It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health standards
 (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards
 Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).
- 3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.3704).

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows:

- 1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act.
- 2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.

X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.

1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:

a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.

- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration.
- Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by
 this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the
 ordinary course of business dealings.
- j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

2. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - First Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
 - (1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
 - (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and
 - (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200)

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/),

which is compiled by the General Services Administration.

- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Participants:

- 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.
- 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000 (49 CFR 20).

- 1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
 - a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
 - b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

ON-THE-JOB TRAINING

(10-16-07) (Rev. 4-21-15) Z-10

Description

The North Carolina Department of Transportation will administer a custom version of the Federal On-the-Job Training (OJT) Program, commonly referred to as the Alternate OJT Program. All contractors (existing and newcomers) will be automatically placed in the Alternate Program. Standard OJT requirements typically associated with individual projects will no longer be applied at the project level. Instead, these requirements will be applicable on an annual basis for each contractor administered by the OJT Program Manager.

On the Job Training shall meet the requirements of 23 CFR 230.107 (b), 23 USC – Section 140, this provision and the On-the-Job Training Program Manual.

The Alternate OJT Program will allow a contractor to train employees on Federal, State and privately funded projects located in North Carolina. However, priority shall be given to training employees on NCDOT Federal-Aid funded projects.

Minorities and Women

Developing, training and upgrading of minorities and women toward journeyman level status is a primary objective of this special training provision. Accordingly, the Contractor shall make every effort to enroll minority and women as trainees to the extent that such persons are available within a reasonable area of recruitment. This training commitment is not intended, and shall not be used, to discriminate against any applicant for training, whether a member of a minority group or not.

Assigning Training Goals

The Department, through the OJT Program Manager, will assign training goals for a calendar year based on the contractors' past three years' activity and the contractors' anticipated upcoming year's activity with the Department. At the beginning of each year, all contractors eligible will be contacted by the Department to determine the number of trainees that will be assigned for the upcoming calendar year. At that time the Contractor shall enter into an agreement with the Department to provide a self-imposed on-the-job training program for the calendar year. This agreement will include a specific number of annual training goals agreed to by both parties. The number of training assignments may range from 1 to 15 per contractor per calendar year. The Contractor shall sign an agreement to fulfill their annual goal for the year.

Training Classifications

The Contractor shall provide on-the-job training aimed at developing full journeyman level workers in the construction craft/operator positions. Preference shall be given to providing training in the following skilled work classifications:

Equipment Operators Office Engineers
Truck Drivers Estimators

Carpenters Iron / Reinforcing Steel Workers

Concrete Finishers Mechanics
Pipe Layers Welders

The Department has established common training classifications and their respective training requirements that may be used by the contractors. However, the classifications established are not all-inclusive. Where the training is oriented toward construction applications, training will be allowed in lower-level management positions such as office engineers and estimators. Contractors shall submit new classifications for specific job functions that their employees are performing. The Department will review and recommend for acceptance to FHWA the new classifications proposed by contractors, if applicable. New classifications shall meet the following requirements:

Proposed training classifications are reasonable and realistic based on the job skill classification needs, and

The number of training hours specified in the training classification is consistent with common practices and provides enough time for the trainee to obtain journeyman level status.

The Contractor may allow trainees to be trained by a subcontractor provided that the Contractor retains primary responsibility for meeting the training and this provision is made applicable to the subcontract. However, only the Contractor will receive credit towards the annual goal for the trainee.

Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation shall be in their first year of apprenticeship or training. The number of trainees shall be distributed among the work classifications on the basis of the contractor's needs and the availability of journeymen in the various classifications within a reasonable area of recruitment.

No employee shall be employed as a trainee in any classification in which they have successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman level status or in which they have been employed as a journeyman.

Records and Reports

The Contractor shall maintain enrollment, monthly and completion reports documenting company compliance under these contract documents. These documents and any other information as requested shall be submitted to the OJT Program Manager.

Upon completion and graduation of the program, the Contractor shall provide each trainee with a certification Certificate showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed.

Trainee Interviews

All trainees enrolled in the program will receive an initial and Trainee/Post graduate interview conducted by the OJT program staff.

Trainee Wages

Contractors shall compensate trainees on a graduating pay scale based upon a percentage of the prevailing minimum journeyman wages (Davis-Bacon Act). Minimum pay shall be as follows:

60 percent of the journeyman wage for the first half of the training period
75 percent of the journeyman wage for the third quarter of the training period
90 percent of the journeyman wage for the last quarter of the training period

In no instance shall a trainee be paid less than the local minimum wage. The Contractor shall adhere to the minimum hourly wage rate that will satisfy both the NC Department of Labor (NCDOL) and the Department.

Achieving or Failing to Meet Training Goals

The Contractor will be credited for each trainee employed by him on the contract work who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program and who receives training for at least 50 percent of the specific program requirement. Trainees will be allowed to be transferred between projects if required by the Contractor's scheduled workload to meet training goals.

If a contractor fails to attain their training assignments for the calendar year, they may be taken off the NCDOT's Bidders List.

Measurement and Payment

No compensation will be made for providing required training in accordance with these contract documents.

STANDARD SPECIAL PROVISION MINIMUM WAGES GENERAL DECISION NC20210086 01/01/2021 NC86

Z-086

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210086 01/01/2021 NC86

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200086

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Alleghany	Jackson	Surry	
Ashe	Lincoln	Swain	
Avery	Macon	Transylvania	
Cherokee	McDowell	Watauga	
Clay	Mitchell	Wilkes	
Cleveland	Polk	Yancey	
Graham	Rutherford		

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a) (2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-001 11/13/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	21.83	
CARPENTER	12.54	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	14.10	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	19.19	2.39
Telecommunications Technician	15.13	
IRONWORKER	14.53	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	12.23	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	15.22	
Carpenter Tender	10.00	
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	12.26	
Common or General	10.68	
Guardrail/Fence Installer	13.43	
Pipelayer	12.22	
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	15.85	
PAINTER		
Bridge	19.62	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	11.00	
Bulldozer Fine	16.20	
Bulldozer Rough	13.89	
Concrete Grinder/Groover	24.66	
Crane Boom Trucks	14.44	.53
Crane Other	19.59	

	Rates	Fringes
Crane Rough/All-Terrain	21.25	
Drill Operator Rock	15.25	
Drill Operator Structure	20.92	
Excavator Fine	16.11	
Excavator Rough	13.10	
Grader/Blade Fine	19.24	
Grader/Blade Rough	13.07	
Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	13.38	
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	16.01	
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	17.39	
Mechanic	18.51	
Milling Machine	13.88	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	13.87	
Oiler/Greaser	14.98	
Pavement Marking Equipment	13.33	
Paver Asphalt	15.68	.05
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	14.05	.06
Roller Asphalt Finish	14.98	.04
Roller Other	11.75	
Scraper Finish	13.87	
Scraper Rough	11.53	
Slip Form Machine	20.79	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	14.67	.06
TRUCK DRIVER		
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Less	11.72	
GVWR of 26,001 Lbs or Greater	13.50	

Welders - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

GENERAL DECISION NC20210087 01/01/2021 NC87

Z-087

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210087 01/01/2021 NC87

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200087

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Alexander	Caldwell	Henderson
Buncombe	Catawba	Madison
Burke	Haywood	

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set

forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2) – (60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-002 11/13/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	20.93	
CARPENTER	13.48	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	14.40	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	18.79	2.62
Telecommunications Technician	14.67	1.67
IRONWORKER	12.48	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	11.76	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	15.38	.08
Carpenter Tender	10.50	
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	11.04	
Common or General	11.90	
Guardrail/Fence Installer	13.09	
Pipelayer	12.87	
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	15.33	.22
PAINTER		
Bridge	20.67	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	10.00	
Bulldozer Fine	16.28	
Bulldozer Rough	14.51	
Concrete Grinder/Groover	19.20	
Crane Boom Trucks	18.19	
Crane Other	18.69	
Crane Other Crane Rough/All-Terrain	19.19	
Drill Operator Rock	15.00	
Drill Operator Structure	21.07	
Excavator Fine	16.02	
Excavator Fine Excavator Rough	14.67	
Grader/Blade Fine	19.86	
	19.86	
Grader/Blade Rough Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	12.38	
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	17.91	
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	15.44	
Mechanic	17.86	
Milling Machine	15.08	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	11.95	
Oiler/Greaser	15.05	
Pavement Marking Equipment	11.99	00
Paver Asphalt	17.84	.08
Paver Concrete	18.20	000
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	15.00	.08
Roller Asphalt Finish	16.08	.07
Roller Other	12.51	.03
Scraper Finish	12.86	
Scraper Rough	13.83	
Slip Form Machine	20.38	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	14.81	.02
TRUCK DRIVER		
GVWR of 26,001 Lbs or Greater	13.65	
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Less	12.48	

Welders - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of,

domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

GENERAL DECISION NC20210088 01/01/2021 NC88

Z-088

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210088 01/01/2021 NC88

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200088

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Alamance	Forsyth	Randolph
Anson	Gaston	Rockingham
Cabarrus	Guilford	Stokes
Chatham	Mecklenburg	Union
Davie	Orange	Yadkin
Durham	Person	

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2) – (60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-003 11/14/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	18.64	
CARPENTER	13.68	.05
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	13.93	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	18.79	2.72
Telecommunications Technician	15.19	1.25
IRONWORKER	13.30	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	12.78	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	14.50	
Carpenter Tender	12.51	.27
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	11.04	
Common or General	10.40	.01
Guardrail/Fence Installer	13.22	
Pipelayer	12.43	
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	15.65	.24
PAINTER		
Bridge	23.77	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	10.00	
Bulldozer Fine	16.13	
Bulldozer Rough	14.36	
Concrete Grinder/Groover	17.92	

	Rates	Fringes
Crane Boom Trucks	18.19	
Crane Other	19.83	
Crane Rough/All-Terrain	19.10	
Drill Operator Rock	14.28	
Drill Operator Structure	20.89	
Excavator Fine	16.95	
Excavator Rough	13.63	
Grader/Blade Fine	19.84	
Grader/Blade Rough	15.47	
Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	13.31	
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	16.19	
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	15.44	
Mechanic	17.51	
Milling Machine	15.22	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	11.83	
Oiler/Greaser	14.16	
Pavement Marking Equipment	12.05	
Paver Asphalt	15.97	
Paver Concrete	18.20	
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	12.79	
Roller Asphalt Finish	13.76	
Roller Other	12.08	
Scraper Finish	12.65	
Scraper Rough	11.50	
Slip Form Machine	19.60	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	14.82	
RUCK DRIVER		
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Less	11.45	
GVWR of 26,001 Lbs or Greater	13.57	.03

Welders - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the

classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

GENERAL DECISION NC20210089 01/01/2021 NC89

Z-089

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210089 01/01/2021 NC89

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200089

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Caswell	Lee	Richmond
Davidson	Montgomery	Rowan
Iredell	Moore	Stanly

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any

classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(1)(2) – (60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-004 11/17/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	21.85	
CARPENTER	13.98	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	13.67	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	19.19	2.39
Telecommunications Technician	14.96	1.07
IRONWORKER	14.53	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	11.75	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	14.03	
Carpenter Tender	10.21	
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	12.26	
Common or General	10.45	.13
Guardrail/Fence Installer	13.43	
Pipelayer	13.36	.43
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	16.29	
PAINTER PAINTER		
Bridge	19.62	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	12.14	
Bulldozer Fine	16.92	
Bulldozer Rough	15.58	
Concrete Grinder/Groover	25.00	
Crane Boom Trucks	14.83	
Crane Other	21.05	
Crane Rough/All-Terrain	21.25	
Drill Operator Rock	15.43	1.61
Drill Operator Structure	19.24	1101
Excayator Fine	16.09	1.52
Excavator Rough	14.07	.74
Grader/Blade Fine	19.40	.,.
Grader/Blade Rough	15.48	
Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	12.67	1.52
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	14.48	1.52
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	17.39	
Mechanic Mechanic	18.86	
Milling Machine	16.26	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	12.90	
Oiler/Greaser	16.36	
Pavement Marking Equipment	11.63	
Paver Asphalt	15.07	
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	12.91	
Roller Asphalt Finish	13.67	
Roller Other	13.48	
Scraper Finish	13.48	
Scraper Fillish Scraper Rough	11.53	
Scraper Rough Slip Form Machine	11.33	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	15.60	
TRUCK DRIVER	15.00	
GVWR of 26.000 Lbs or Less	10.58	
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Greater	13.50	.15

Welders - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or

other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice

material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

GENERAL DECISION NC20210090 01/01/2021 NC90

Z-090

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210090 01/01/2021 NC90

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200090

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Brunswick	Greene	Onslow
Cumberland	Hoke	Pender
Currituck	Johnston	Pitt
Edgecombe	Nash	Wake
Franklin	New Hanover	Wayne

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2) – (60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-005 11/17/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	21.04	
CARPENTER	13.72	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	14.48	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	17.97	
Telecommunications Technician	16.79	.63
IRONWORKER	16.02	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	12.46	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	14.33	
Carpenter Tender	12.88	
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	12.54	
Common or General	10.20	
Guardrail/Fence Installer	12.87	
Pipelayer	12.17	
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	14.89	
PAINTER		
Bridge	24.57	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	11.85	
Bulldozer Fine	17.04	
Bulldozer Rough	14.34	

	Rates	Fringes
Concrete Grinder/Groover	20.34	2.30
Crane Boom Trucks	20.54	
Crane Other	20.08	
Crane Rough/All-Terrain	20.67	
Drill Operator Rock	14.38	
Drill Operator Structure	21.14	
Excavator Fine	16.60	
Excavator Rough	14.00	
Grader/Blade Fine	18.47	
Grader/Blade Rough	14.62	
Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	13.76	
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	14.14	
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	15.18	
Mechanic	17.55	
Milling Machine	15.36	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	11.36	
Oiler/Greaser	13.55	
Pavement Marking Equipment	12.11	
Paver Asphalt	15.59	
Paver Concrete	18.20	
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	12.45	
Roller Asphalt Finish	13.85	
Roller Other	11.36	
Scraper Finish	12.71	
Scraper Rough	11.35	
Slip Form Machine	16.50	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	14.52	
TRUCK DRIVER		
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Less	11.12	
GVWR of 26,001 Lbs or Greater	12.37	

Welders – Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

GENERAL DECISION NC20210091 01/01/2021 NC91

Z-091

Date: January 1, 2021

General Decision Number: NC20210091 01/01/2021 NC91

Superseded General Decision Numbers: NC20200091

State: North Carolina

Construction Type: HIGHWAY

COUNTIES:

Beaufort	Granville	Pasquotank
Bertie	Halifax	Perquimans
Bladen	Harnett	Robeson
Camden	Hertford	Sampson
Carteret	Hyde	Scotland
Chowan	Jones	Tyrrell
Columbus	Lenoir	Vance

Craven	Martin	Warren
Dare	Northampton	Washington
Duplin	Pamlico	Wilson
Gates		

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding tunnels, building structures in rest area projects & railroad construction; bascule, suspension & spandrel arch bridges designed for commercial navigation, bridges involving marine construction; and other major bridges).

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract for calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR.5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2) – (60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number

Publication Date 01/01/2021

SUNC2014-006 11/17/2014

	Rates	Fringes
BLASTER	21.85	
CARPENTER	13.72	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	14.26	
ELECTRICIAN		
Electrician	18.69	2.66
Telecommunications Technician	14.72	1.67
IRONWORKER	16.32	
LABORER		
Asphalt Raker and Spreader	12.42	
Asphalt Screed/Jackman	13.48	
Carpenter Tender	10.85	
Cement Mason/Concrete Finisher Tender	11.35	
Common or General	10.12	
Guardrail/Fence Installer	13.39	
Pipelayer	13.31	
Traffic Signal/Lighting Installer	16.88	
PAINTER		
Bridge	19.62	
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS		
Asphalt Broom Tractor	13.28	
Bulldozer Fine	18.46	
Bulldozer Rough	14.09	1
Concrete Grinder/Groover	24.66	
Crane Boom Trucks	17.25	
Crane Other	21.48	
Crane Rough/All-Terrain	19.00	
Drill Operator Rock	15.43	1.61
Drill Operator Structure	19.12	
Excavator Fine	17.61	
Excavator Rough	12.99	
Grader/Blade Fine	16.73	
Grader/Blade Rough	15.28	
Loader 2 Cubic Yards or Less	10.28	
Loader Greater Than 2 Cubic Yards	13.58	
Material Transfer Vehicle (Shuttle Buggy)	17.39	
Mechanic	18.63	
Milling Machine	14.38	
Off-Road Hauler/Water Tanker	9.30	
Oiler/Greaser	13.45	
Pavement Marking Equipment	11.87	
Paver Asphalt	15.53	
Roller Asphalt Breakdown	12.13	
Roller Asphalt Finish	13.65	
Roller Other	10.48	
Scraper Finish	13.98	
Scraper Prinsii Scraper Rough	10.17	

	Rates	Fringes
Slip Form Machine	19.29	
Tack Truck/Distributor Operator	14.56	
TRUCK DRIVER		
GVWR of 26,000 Lbs or Less	10.35	
GVWR of 26,001 Lbs or Greater	12.04	

Welders – Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
 - * an existing published wage determination
 - * a survey underlying a wage determination
 - * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
 - * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U. S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION

TITLE VI AND NONDISCRIMINATION:

(6-28-77)(Rev 6/19/2018) Z-6

Revise the 2018 Standard Specifications as follows:

Replace Article 103-4(B) with the following:

The North Carolina Department of Transportation is committed to carrying out the U.S. Department of Transportation's policy of ensuring nondiscrimination in the award and administration of contracts.

The provisions of this section related to United States Department of Transportation (US DOT) Order 1050.2A, Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 21, 23 United States Code (U.S.C.) 140 and 23 CFR part 200 (or 49 CFR 303, 49 U.S.C. 5332 or 49 U.S.C. 47123) are applicable to all North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) contracts and to all related subcontracts, material supply, engineering, architectural and other service contracts, regardless of dollar amount. Any Federal provision that is specifically required not specifically set forth is hereby incorporated by reference.

(1) Title VI Assurances (USDOT Order 1050.2A, Appendix A)

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows:

- (a) Compliance with Regulations
 - The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) shall comply with the Acts and the Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.
- (b) Nondiscrimination
 - The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.
- (c) Solicitations for Subcontractors, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment
 In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a
 subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be
 notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to
 Nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- (d) Information and Reports

The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and

instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor shall so certify to the Recipient or the FHWA, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

(e) Sanctions for Noncompliance:

In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it and/or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

- (i) Withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or
- (ii) Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

(f) Incorporation of Provisions

The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

(2) Title VI Nondiscrimination Program (23 CFR 200.5(p))

The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) has assured the USDOT that, as a condition to receiving federal financial assistance, NCDOT will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and all requirements imposed by Title 49 CFR part 21 and related nondiscrimination authorities to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, limited English proficiency, sex, age, or disability (including religion/creed or income-level, where applicable), be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any programs, activities, or services conducted or funded by NCDOT. Contractors and other organizations under contract or agreement with NCDOT must also comply with Title VI and related authorities, therefore:

- (a) During the performance of this contract or agreement, contractors (e.g., subcontractors, consultants, vendors, prime contractors) are responsible for complying with NCDOT's Title VI Program. Contractors are not required to prepare or submit Title VI Programs. To comply with this section, the prime contractor shall:
 - 1. Post NCDOT's Notice of Nondiscrimination and the Contractor's own Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Policy in conspicuous locations accessible to all employees, applicants and subcontractors on the jobsite.
 - 2. Physically incorporate the required Title VI clauses into all subcontracts on federally-assisted and state-funded NCDOT projects, and ensure inclusion by subcontractors into all lower-tier subcontracts.
 - 3. Required Solicitation Language. The Contractor shall include the following notification in all solicitations for bids and requests for work or material, regardless of funding source:

 "The North Carolina Department of Transportation, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 US.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award. In accordance with other related nondiscrimination authorities, bidders and contractors will also not be discriminated against on the grounds of sex, age, disability, low-income level, creed/religion, or limited English proficiency in consideration for an award."
 - 4. Physically incorporate the FHWA-1273, in its entirety, into all subcontracts and subsequent lower tier subcontracts on Federal-aid highway construction contracts only.
 - 5. Provide language assistance services (i.e., written translation and oral interpretation), free of charge, to LEP employees and applicants. Contact NCDOT OCR for further assistance, if needed.
 - For assistance with these Title VI requirements, contact the NCDOT Title VI Nondiscrimination Program at 1-800-522-0453.
- (b) Subrecipients (e.g. cities, counties, LGAs, planning organizations) may be required to prepare and submit a Title VI Plan to NCDOT, including Title VI Assurances and/or agreements. Subrecipients must also ensure compliance by their contractors and subrecipients with Title VI. (23 CFR 200.9(b)(7))
- (c) If reviewed or investigated by NCDOT, the contractor or subrecipient agrees to take affirmative action to correct any deficiencies found within a reasonable time period, not to exceed 90 calendar days, unless additional time is granted by NCDOT. (23 CFR 200.9(b)(15))
- (d) The Contractor is responsible for notifying subcontractors of NCDOT's External Discrimination Complaints Process.
 - 1. Applicability
 - Title VI and related laws protect participants and beneficiaries (e.g., members of the public and contractors) from discrimination by NCDOT employees, subrecipients and contractors, regardless of funding source.

2. Eligibility

Any person—or class of persons—who believes he/she has been subjected to discrimination based on race, color, national origin, Limited English Proficiency (LEP), sex, age, or disability (and religion in the context of employment, aviation, or transit) may file a written complaint. The law also prohibits intimidation or retaliation of any sort.

- 3. Time Limits and Filing Options
 - Complaints may be filed by the affected individual(s) or a representative and must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after the following:
- (i) The date of the alleged act of discrimination; or
- (ii) The date when the person(s) became aware of the alleged discrimination; or
- (iii) Where there has been a continuing course of conduct, the date on which that conduct was discontinued or the latest instance of the conduct.
 - Title VI and related discrimination complaints may be submitted to the following entities:
- North Carolina Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights, Title VI Program, 1511 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1511; toll free 1-800-522-0453
- Federal Highway Administration, North Carolina Division Office, 310 New Bern Avenue, Suite 410, Raleigh, NC 27601, 919-747-7010
- ➤ US Department of Transportation, Departmental Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights Programs Division, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590; 202-366-4070
- 4. Format for Complaints
 - Complaints must be in writing and signed by the complainant(s) or a representative, and include the complainant's name, address, and telephone number. Complaints received by fax or e-mail will be acknowledged and processed. Allegations received by telephone will be reduced to writing and provided to the complainant for confirmation or revision before processing. Complaints will be accepted in other languages, including Braille.
- 5. Discrimination Complaint Form
 - Contact NCDOT Civil Rights to receive a full copy of the Discrimination Complaint Form and procedures.
- 6. Complaint Basis

Allegations must be based on issues involving race, color, national origin (LEP), sex, age, disability, or religion (in the context of employment, aviation or transit). "Basis" refers to the complainant's membership in a protected group category.

TABLE 103-1 COMPLAINT BASIS					
Protected Categories	Definition	Examples	Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities		
Race and Ethnicity	An individual belonging to one of the accepted racial groups; or the perception, based usually on physical characteristics that a person is a member of a racial group	Black/African American, Hispanic/Latino, Asian, American Indian/Alaska Native, Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, White	Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 49 CFR Part 21; 23 CFR 200; 49 U.S.C. 5332(b); 49 U.S.C. 47123. (Executive Order 13166)		
Color	Color of skin, including shade of skin within a racial group	Black, White, brown, yellow, etc.			
National Origin (Limited English Proficiency)	Place of birth. Citizenship is not a factor. (Discrimination based on language or a person's accent is also covered)	Mexican, Cuban, Japanese, Vietnamese, Chinese			
Sex	Gender. The sex of an individual. Note: Sex under this program does not include sexual orientation.	Women and Men	1973 Federal-Aid Highway Act; 49 U.S.C. 5332(b); 49 U.S.C. 47123.		
Age	Persons of any age	21-year-old person	Age Discrimination Act of 1975 49 U.S.C. 5332(b); 49 U.S.C. 47123.		

Disability	Physical or mental impairment, permanent or temporary, or perceived.	Blind, alcoholic, para-amputee, epileptic, diabetic, arthritic	Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
Religion (in the context of employment) (Religion/ Creed in all aspects of any aviation or transit-related construction)	An individual belonging to a religious group; or the perception, based on distinguishable characteristics that a person is a member of a religious group. In practice, actions taken as a result of the moral and ethical beliefs as to what is right and wrong, which are sincerely held with the strength of traditional religious views. <i>Note:</i> Does not have to be associated with a recognized religious group or church; if an individual sincerely holds to the belief, it is a protected religious practice.	Muslim, Christian, Sikh, Hindu, etc.	Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 23 CFR 230; FHWA-1273 Required Contract Provisions. (49 U.S.C. 5332(b); 49 U.S.C. 47123)

(3) Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities, including, but not limited to:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex);
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR Part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- (g) The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);
- (h) Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
- (i) The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- (j) Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures Nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- (k) Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of Limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- (1) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).
- (m) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., Pub. L. 88-352), (prohibits employment discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin).

(4) Additional Title VI Assurances

- **The following Title VI Assurances (Appendices B, C and D) shall apply, as applicable
- (a) Clauses for Deeds Transferring United States Property (1050.2A, Appendix B)

 The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 4.

 NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the condition that the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon in accordance with the North Carolina General Assembly, the Regulations for the Administration of the Federal-Aid Highway Program, and the policies and procedures prescribed by the Federal Highway Administration of the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the NCDOT all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(HABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the NCDOT, its successors and assigns.

The NCDOT, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the NCDOT will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination

in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended [, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned nondiscrimination conditions, the Department will have a right to enter or re-enter said

lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].* (*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

- (b) Clauses for Transfer of Real Property Acquired or Improved Under the Activity, Facility, or Program (1050.2A, Appendix C) The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a):
 - 1. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that:
 - (i.) In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.
 - 2. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, the NCDOT will have the right to terminate the (lease, license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued. *
 - 3. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, the NCDOT will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the NCDOT and its assigns. *

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

(c) Clauses for Construction/Use/Access to Real Property Acquired Under the Activity, Facility or Program (1050.2A, Appendix D)

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/ agreements entered into by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b):

- 1. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance.
- 2. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above Non¬ discrimination covenants, the NCDOT will have the right to terminate the (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued. *
- 3. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, the NCDOT will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the NCDOT and its assigns. *

 (*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear to the property of the NCDOT and its assigns.

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

ATTACHMENT A: WASTE DISPOSAL SERVICE REGIONS AND COUNTIES

EASTERN REGION (Divisions 1, 2, 3, and 4)	CENTRAL REGION (Divisions 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10)	WESTERN REGION (Divisions 11, 12, 13 and 14)
Currituck	Warren	Ashe
Camden	Vance	Alleghany
Pasquotank	Franklin	Surry
Perquimans	Wake	Avery
Chowan	Durham	Wilkes
Gates	Person	Watauga
Hertford	Granville	Caldwell
Northampton	Caswell	Yadkin
Bertie	Rockingham	Alexander
Martin	Guilford	Iredell
Washington	Alamance	Catawba
Tyrell	Orange	Lincoln
Dare	Randolph	Gaston
Hyde	Chatham	Cleveland
Beaufort	Lee	Mitchell
Pitt	Moore	Yancey
Greene	Montgomery	Madison
Lenoir	Richmond	Buncombe
Craven	Hoke	McDowell
Jones	Scotland	Burke
Pamlico	Stokes	Rutherford
Carteret	Forsyth	Haywood
Sampson	Davie	Henderson
Duplin	Davidson	Polk
Onslow	Rowan	Jackson
Pender	Cabarrus	Transylvania
New Hanover	Stanley	Swain
Brunswick	Mecklenburg	Macon
Halifax	Union	Graham
Edgecombe	Anson	Cherokee
Nash	Harnett	Clay
Wilson	Cumberland	
Johnston	Bladen	
Wayne	Robeson	
	Columbus	

PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF TRADITIONAL PAPER BIDS

As stated under "AWARD OF CONTRACT" above, the Engineer will evaluate the Bidder's proposal to determine the responsibility of the bid and insure compliance with contract. The Engineer, using his/her discretion, will determine whether a bidder is "responsible" and capable of performing the required work. The Bidder should demonstrate an understanding of the requirements of the contract, and that the requirements have been addressed in his/her bid to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The Bidder should demonstrate that he/she is capable of performing the required work under this contract, to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

PLEASE READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE PREPARING AND SUBMITTING YOUR BID

Paper bids shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with SSRS § 102-8 and the following requirements. Failure to comply with any requirement may cause the bid to be irregular and may be grounds for rejection of the bid. Only the Bid Submittal Package pages and all signed addenda shall be submitted as your proposal. One (1) signed original and two (2) signed copies of the Bid Submittal Package and all signed addenda; shall be submitted as the Bidder's proposal.

- 1. The attached Bid Submittal Package (Bid Submittal Pages 1 of 24 through 24 of 24) furnished by the Department shall be used. The bid shall be submitted on the same proposal that has been furnished to the bidder by the Department. Copies of previous proposals shall be rejected.
- 2. All entries on the Contract Bid Forms and Bid Sheets, including signatures shall be written in ink or typed.
- 3. A separate Bid Sheet may be submitted for each region being bid or the Contractor may submit one bid sheet and indicate multiple regions or all regions at the top of the Bid Sheet. The Bidder shall submit a unit price for each item listed in the Bid Sheet which he/she can furnish. The Unit Price for the various contract items shall be written in figures. Unit prices shall be rounded off by the Bidder to contain no more than **TWO (2) decimal places**.
- 4. Changes to any entry in the Bid Submittal Package shall be made by marking through the entry in ink and making the correct entry adjacent thereto in ink. A representative of the Bidder shall initial the change in ink. Do not use correction fluid, correction tape or similar product to make corrections.
- 5. The bid shall be properly executed on the included Execution of Bid Non-collusion Affidavit, Debarment Certification and Gift Ban Certification form. All bids shall show the following information:
 - a. Name of corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, individual or firm, submitting bid.
 - Corporations that have a corporate seal should include it on the bid.
 - b. Name of individual or representative submitting bid and position or title held on behalf of the bidder.
 - c. Name, signature, and position or title of witness.
- 6. The bid shall not contain any unauthorized additions, deletions, or conditional bids.
- 7. The Bidder shall not add any provision reserving the right to accept or reject an award, or to enter into a contract pursuant to an award.
- 8. The Bid Submittal Package shall be placed in a sealed envelope and shall be delivered to and received in the DOT Purchasing Section by 2:00 pm on June 29, 2021 at the address indicated in the table below:

MAILING ADDRESS FOR DELIVER OF BID VIA U.S. POSTAL SERVICE	OFFICE ADDRESS FOR DELIVERY BY ANY OTHER MEANS, SPECIAL DELIVERY, HAND DELIVERY, OVERNIGHT DELIVERY OR BY ANY OTHER CARRIER
BID NUMBER: 54-CA-11994333	BID NUMBER: 54-CA-11994333
Attn: Christian Andresen	Attn: Christian Andresen
North Carolina Department of Transportation	North Carolina Department of Transportation
Purchasing Section	Purchasing Section
Address: 1510 Mail Service Center	Address: 1 South Wilmington Street, Room 334B
Raleigh, NC 27699-1510	Raleigh, NC 27601

IMPORTANT NOTE: All paper bids shall be physically delivered to the <u>office address</u> listed above on or before the bid deadline in order to be considered timely, regardless of method of delivery (including U.S. mail). **This is an absolute requirement.** All risk of late arrival due to unanticipated delay – whether delivered by hand, U.S. Postal Service, courier or other delivery service is entirely on the Vendor. It is the sole responsibility of the Vendor to have the bid physically in this Office by the specified time and date of opening. The time of delivery will be marked on each bid when received, and any bid received after the bid submission deadline will be rejected. Sealed bids, subject to the conditions made a part hereof, will be received at the address indicated in the table in this Section, for furnishing and delivering the commodity or service as described herein.

Note that the U.S. Postal Service does not deliver mail to the specified office address but to the State's Mail Service Center. Vendors are cautioned that bids sent via U.S. Mail, including Express Mail, may not be delivered by the Mail Service Center to the agency's purchasing office on the due date in time to meet the bid deadline. All Vendors are urged to take the possibility of delay into account when submitting a bid.

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope. Clearly mark each package with: (1) Vendor name; (2) the IFB number; and (3) the due date. Address the package(s) for delivery as shown in the table above.

Bids shall be marked on the outside of the sealed envelope with the Vendor's name, IFB number, and date and time of opening. If Vendor is submitting more than one bid, each bid shall be submitted in a separate sealed envelope and marked accordingly. For delivery purposes, separate sealed bids from a single Vendor may be included in the same outer package. Do not include bids for more than one solicitation in the same package.

Failure to address proposals correctly could result in delayed delivery service.

OPENING OF BIDS

Bids subject to the conditions made a part hereof will be received until 2:00 pm on June 29, 2021 and then publicly opened for furnishing the services as described herein.

Opening of bids is to be in the NCDOT Transportation Building Complex located at 1 South Wilmington Street, Raleigh 27601.

NOTE: Parking at the Transportation Building Complex is limited. Arrive early!

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION $\underline{\textbf{BID SUBMITTAL PACKAGE}}$

BID PROPOSAL NO.: WBS ELEMENT NOS.: FEDERAL AID NO.: COUNTIES: TYPE OF WORK:	VARIOUS VARIOUS
Bidder/Offeror:	
ATTENTION Federal Employer Identification internal processing, include	cation Number or alternate identification number (e.g., Social Security Number) is used for ling bid tabulation.
Enter ID number here:	
	2.10(b) this identification number shall not be released to the public. This page is segregated for to a valid public records request.

This page will be removed and shredded, or otherwise kept confidential, before the procurement file is made available for public inspection.

CONTRACT BID FORM

Select Region(s) by entering either one Region, or multiple Regions, or All Regions. If your bid sheet prices are the same for multiple or all regions then you can submit one complete Contract Bid Form. If your bid sheet prices are different per region, then submit separate Contract Bid Forms for each Region you are bidding.

COUNTIES/REGIONS	DIVISIONS	MAKE SELECTION HERE
EASTERN REGION	1, 2, 3, AND 4	
CENTRAL REGION	5, 6, 7, 8, 9 AND 10	
WESTERN REGION	11, 12, 13 AND 14	
ALL REGIONS	1 - 14	

			BID SHEET				
Stop Fe	ees						
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION			Unit	Extended
						Price (\$)	Price (\$)
1	1	Each	Stop Fee				
2	1	Each	Time-Critical Stop Fee				
3	1	Each	Roll-Off Box Stop Fee				
Technic	cal Serv	ices					
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION			Unit	Extended
						Price (\$)	Price (\$)
4	1	HR	Project Manager				
5	1	HR	Technician				
6	1	HR	Chemist				
7	1	HR	Equipment Operator				
Labora	tory An	alysis					
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Solids	Solids	Liquid	Liquid
				Unit	Extended	Unit	Extended
				Price (\$)	Price (\$)	Price (\$)	Price (\$)
8	1	Each	% Water				
9	1	Each	Flash Point				
10	1	Each	Corrosivity-pH				
11	1	Each	BTU				
12	1	Each	Reactivity				
13	1	Each	Volatiles (Method 8260B)				
14	1	Each	Semi-Volatiles (Method 8270C)				
15	1	Each	RCRA Metals (8)				
16	1	Each	PCB's/Pesticides (Method 8080)				
17	1	Each	Herbicides (Method 8150)				
18	1	Each	Oil & Grease (9071 or equivalent)				
19	1	Each	TPH-EPA 5030				
20	1	Each	TPH-EPA 3550				
21	1	Each	Modified EPA 602 (BTEX Only)				
22	1	Each	Full TCLP (Method 1311)				
23	1	Each	TCLP-Volatiles (Method 8260B)				
24	1	Each	TCLP-Semi-Volatiles (Method 8270C)				
25	1	Each	TCLP-RCRA Metals (8)				
26	1	Each	TCLP-PCBs/ Pesticides (Method 8080)				
27	1	Each	TCLP-Herbicides (Method 8150)				
28	1	Each	TCLP-Organophosphorus Pesticides (Method				
			8141)				
29	1	Each	RCRA Metals (each)				
30	1	Each	Phosphate				
31	1	Each	Nitrate				

ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Solids Unit Price (\$)	Solids Extended Price (\$)	Liquid Unit Price \$	Liquid Extended Price \$
32	1	Each	Nitrite				
33	1	Each	Chloride				
34	1	Each	Total Organic Halogens (TOX)				
35	1	Each	Fluoride				
36	1	Each	Sulfates				
37	1	Each	Sulfides				
38	1	Each	Reactive Sulfides				
39	1	Each	Cyanide				
40	1	Each	Reactive Cyanide				
41	1	Each	Unknown Identification (per sample)				
	1	Materials	Chikhowh Identification (per sample)				
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION			Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
42	1	Each	55-Gallon UN 1A1			11100 (5)	11100 (\$)
42	1	Each	55-Gallon UN 1A1				
44	1	Each	55-Gallon UN 1H1				
	-	1					
45	1	Each	55-Gallon UN 1H2				
46	1	Each	30-Gallon UN Poly (open head)				
47	1	Each	30-Gallon UN Poly (closed head)				
48	1	Each	15-Gallon Drum (UN Fiber)				
49	1	Each	5-Gallon Pail (UN with lid)				
50	1	Each	Cubic Yard Box (with liner)				
51	1	Each	LCM Box 4 Foot Linear				
52	1	Each	LCM Box 8 Foot Linear				
53	1	Each	85-Gallon Overpack Drum (steel)				
54	1	Each	95-Gallon Overpack Drum (Poly)				
55	1	Day	20-yard Open Top Roll-Off Container				
56	1	Each	Absorbent (granular bag)				
57	1	Each	Roll-off Box Liner				
58	1	Each	Pallet (200 Count)				
59	1	Each	Sorbent Booms (4 count, 8-inch by 10-foot))				
60	1	Each	Sorbent Pads (200 count)				
61	1	HR	³ / ₄ -ton Truck				
62	1	Mile	Tractor-Trailer (per running mile)				
63	1	HR	Backhoe (includes mobilization and de-mobili				
64	1	HR	Track hoe (includes mobilization and de-mobi	lization)			
65	1	HR	Vacuum Truck				
66	1	HR	Vacuum Tanker				
67	1	HR	Super Sucker Vacuum Truck				
68	1	HR	Sump Pump (2" Electric)				
69	1	HR	Diaphragm Pump (1" intake)				
70	1	HR	Diaphragm Pump (2" intake)				
71	1	HR	Piston Pump (hand operated)				
72	1	HR	Drum Vacuum				
73	1	HR	Air Compressor				
74	1	HR	Pressure Washer				
75	1	HR	Steam Jenny				
76	1	HR	Blower (air mover)				
77	1	HR	Lighting				
78	1	HR	Generator				
79	1	HR	Oil Skimmer (floating)				
80	1	Foot	Oil Boom (reusable)				
81	-	HR	2" Gas Pump				<u> </u>

		1			1
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
				Price (\$)	Price (\$)
82	1	HR	Barrel Pump		
83	1	HR	Soil/Gas Probe		
84	1	HR	HEPA Vacuum		
85	1	HR	Tornado Vacuum		
86	1	HR	OVA/OVM		
87	1	HR	FID		
88	1	HR	Explosimeter/LEL Indicator		
89	1	Pound	Alkaline Neutralizer (example-citric acid)		
90	1	Pound	Acid Neutralizer (example-lime)		
91	1	Man Day	Level A Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)		
92	1	Man Day	Level B PPE		
93	1	Man Day	Level C PPE		
94	1	Loaded Mile	Bulk Transportation (solids)		
95	1	Mile	Drop Fee (roll-off box delivery)		
	-	ls Blending – Wa	1 1		
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
IIEWI	VII	UOW	DESCRIPTION		
06	1	Callan		Price (\$)	Price (\$)
96	1	Gallon			
97	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquid - Non-Chlorinated Solvents		
98	1	30-Gal. Drum			
99	1	55-Gal. Drum			
100	1	Gallon			
101	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquid - Chlorinated Solvents		
102	1	30-Gal. Drum	Enquid Cinormated Sorvents		
103	1	55-Gal. Drum			
104	1	Gallon			
105	1	5-Gal. Pail	Chidaa Nan Chladinatad Calaanta		
106	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludge - Non-Chlorinated Solvents		
107	1	55-Gal. Drum			
108	1	Gallon			
109	1	5-Gal. Pail			
110	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludge - Chlorinated Solvents		
111	1	55-Gal. Drum			
112	1	5-Gal. Pail			
113	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solid - Non-Chlorinated Solvents – Monolithic Solid		
114	1	55-Gal. Drum	Sona Non-Chromiated Solvents – Monontine Solid		
115	1	5-Gal. Pail			
			Solid - Chlorinated Solvents – Monolithic Solid		
116	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sond - Chiormated Solvents – Mononthic Sond		
117	1	55-Gal. Drum			
118	1	5-Gal. Pail			
119	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solid - Debris		
120	1	55-Gal. Drum			
_			ardous (Subtitle D) - Waste Stream	1	1
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
				Price (\$)	Price (\$)
121	1	5-Gal. Pail			
122	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - D001, D002, D004-D011		
123	1	55-Gal. Drum			
124	1	5-Gal. Pail			
125	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - D012-D043 (see below)		
126	1	55-Gal. Drum			
127	1	5-Gal. Pail			
128	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - Non-Hazardous Liquids		
129	1	55-Gal. Drum	Diquias 11011 Huzuraous Diquius		
149	1	JJ-Gai. Diuill		1	1

ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
130	1	5-Gal. Pail			
131	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - D001, D002, D004-D011 (except mercury)		
132	1	55-Gal. Drum			
133	1	5-Gal. Pail	Sludges - D012-D043		
134	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - D012-D043		
135	1	55-Gal. Drum			
136	1	5-Gal. Pail			
137	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - Non-Hazardous Sludges		
138	1	55-Gal. Drum	g		
139	1	5-Gal. Pail			
140	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solids - D001, D002, D004-D011 (except mercury)		
141	1	55-Gal. Drum	Solids Boot, Booz, Boot Bott (encept incloudy)		
142	1	5-Gal. Pail			
143	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solids - D012-D043		
144	1	55-Gal. Drum	50nds 5012 5045		
145	1	5-Gal. Pail			
146	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solids - Non-Hazardous Petroleum Contaminated Media		
147	1	55-Gal. Drum	Solids - Noll-Hazardous i ciroledili Collaminated Media		
147	1	5-Gal. Pail			
149	1	30-Gal. Drum	Solids - Non-Hazardous Solids		
150	1	55-Gal. Drum	Solids - Noli-Hazardous Solids		
	1		(C.1441- C) W-4- C4		
			s (Subtitle C) - Waste Stream DESCRIPTION	T T :4	F-4 1- 1
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
151	1	Ton			
152	1	5-Gal. Pail	F006-F009, F019 Listed Waste		
153	1	30-Gal. Drum	1000 1009,1019 Elsted Waste		
154	1	55-Gal. Drum			
155	1	Ton			
156	1	5-Gal. Pail	Listed Materials for Organic Treatment (above LDR standards)		
157	1	30-Gal. Drum	Listed Materials for Organic Treatment (above LDR standards)		
158	1	55-Gal. Drum			
159	1	Ton			
160	1	5-Gal. Pail	Listed Materials for One with Transfer and (balance LDD stored and a)		
161	1	30-Gal. Drum	Listed Materials for Organic Treatment (below LDR standards)		
162	1	55-Gal. Drum			
163	1	Ton			
164	1	5-Gal. Pail	II/D W4		
165	1	30-Gal. Drum	U/P Wastes		
166	1	55-Gal. Drum			
167	1	Ton			
168	1	5-Gal. Pail	N DI		
169	1	30-Gal. Drum	Mercury Debris		
170	1	55-Gal. Drum			
171	1	Ton			
172	1	5-Gal. Pail			
173	1	30-Gal. Drum	Mercury Compounds-Inorganic		
174	1	55-Gal. Drum			
175	1	Ton			
176	1	5-Gal. Pail			
177	1	30-Gal. Drum	Mercury Compounds-Organic		
178	1	55-Gal. Drum			
1/0	1	JJ-Gai. Diuiil		<u> </u>	<u> </u>

		neration- Waste S			
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
179	1	Gallon			
180	1	CY			
181	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquids - Aqueous Waste-Hazardous (D, F, P,U,K)		
182	1	30-Gal. Drum			
183	1	55-Gal. Drum			
184	1	Gallon			
185	1	CY			
186	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquids - Non-Hazardous Liquids		
187	1	30-Gal. Drum			
188	1	55-Gal. Drum			
189	1	Gallon			
190	1	CY			
191	1	5-Gal. Pail	Solids-Hazardous (D, F,P,U,K)		
192	1	30-Gal. Drum			
193	1	55-Gal. Drum			
194	1	Gallon			
195	1	CY			
196	1	5-Gal. Pail	Sludges/ Solids - Solid/Liquid/Sludge Mixture Waste (D, F,P,U,K)		
197	1	30-Gal. Drum	Situages, Solids Solids Enquira Statage Minitaire Waste (D, 1, 1, 0, 11)		
198	1	55-Gal. Drum			
199	1	Gallon			
200	1	CY			
201	1	5-Gal. Pail	Sludges/ Solids - Non-Hazardous Sludges/Solids		
202	1	30-Gal. Drum	Studges/ Solids - Non-Hazardous Studges/Solids		
203	1	55-Gal. Drum			
204	1	Gallon			
205	1	CY			
206	1	5-Gal. Pail	 Mercury – Mercury Debris		
207	1	30-Gal. Drum	Melculy - Melculy Debits		
	1	55-Gal. Drum			
208	1				
209	1	Gallon CY			
210	1		Manager Manager Commanda In		
211	1	5-Gal. Pail	Mercury – Mercury Compounds – Inorganic		
212	1	30-Gal. Drum			
213	1	55-Gal. Drum			
214	1	Gallon			
215	1	CY	W W G I O		
216	1	5-Gal. Pail	Mercury – Mercury Compounds – Organic		
217	1	30-Gal. Drum			
218	1	55-Gal. Drum			
219	1	Gallon			
220	1	CY			
221	1	5-Gal. Pail	Mercury – Elementary Mercury		
222	1	30-Gal. Drum			
223	1	55-Gal. Drum			

			nt – Waste Stream		
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
224	1	Gallon			
225	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquids - Toxic Waste (D004-D043-no mercury)		
226	1	30-Gal. Drum	Elquids - Toxic waste (D004-D043-110 illefedity)		
227	1	55-Gal. Drum			
228	1	Gallon			
229	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquids - Listed Waste (F001-F005)		
230	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquius - Listed Waste (1001-1003)		
231	1	55-Gal. Drum			
232	1	Gallon			
233	1	5-Gal. Pail	Liquida II/D Wasta		
234	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - U/P Waste		
235	1	55-Gal. Drum			
236	1	Gallon			
237	1	5-Gal. Pail	I invide Neulemandon Wester		
238	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - Nonhazardous Waste		
239	1	55-Gal. Drum			
240	1	Gallon			
241	1	5-Gal. Pail	1' '1 C ' (D002) W '		
242	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - Corrosive (D002) Waste		
243	1	55-Gal. Drum			
244	1	Gallon			
245	1	5-Gal. Pail	7 7 7		
246	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - Reactive Waste (D003)		
247	1	55-Gal. Drum			
248	1	Gallon			
249	1	5-Gal. Pail			
250	1	30-Gal. Drum	Liquids - D009 Waste (<260 ppm)		
251	1	55-Gal. Drum			
252	1	Gallon			
253	1	5-Gal. Pail			
254	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - Toxic Waste (D004-D043-no mercury)		
255	1	55-Gal. Drum			
256	1	Gallon			
257	1	5-Gal. Pail			
258	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - Listed Waste (F001-F005)		
259	1	55-Gal. Drum			
260	1	Gallon			
261	1	5-Gal. Pail			
262	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - U/P Waste		
263	1	55-Gal. Drum			
264	1	Gallon			
265	1	5-Gal. Pail			
266	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - Nonhazardous Waste		
267	1	55-Gal. Drum			
268	1	Gallon			
269	1	5-Gal. Pail			
270	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - Corrosive (D002) Waste		
270 271		55-Gal. Drum		-	
	1			+	
272	1	Gallon			
273	1	5-Gal. Pail	Sludges - Reactive (D003) Waste		
274	1	30-Gal. Drum			
275	1	55-Gal. Drum			

ITEM	QTY	UOM		Unit	Extended
TILIVI	QII	CON	DESCRIPTION	Price (\$)	Price (\$)
276	1	Gallon		Πιες (φ)	Πιος (φ)
277	1	5-Gal. Pail	-		
278	1	30-Gal. Drum	Sludges - D009 Waste (<260 ppm)		
279	1	55-Gal. Drum	-		
	al Recvo	cling – Waste Strea	um		
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
112	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	0 0 1.1		Price (\$)	Price (\$)
280	1	Each	Lights Containing Mercury-4 foot linear (intact)	(*/	(*)
281	1	Each	Lights Containing Mercury-8 foot linear (intact)		
282	1	Pound	Other Universal Mercury Containing Devices		
283	1	Pound	Lead Acid Batteries		
284	1	Pound	Mercury Batteries		
285	1	Pound	Ni-Cd Batteries		
286	1	Pound	Lithium Batteries		
287	1	Pound	Alkaline Batteries		
288	1	Pound	Elemental Mercury		
289	1	Pound	Mercury Compounds-Inorganic		
290	1	Pound	Mercury Compounds-Organic		
291	1	Pound	Aerosol Cans		
292	1	Pound	Asphalt Shingles		
Lab Pac	ck Wast	e Treatment Option	n 1 – Waste Stream		
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
				Price (\$)	Price (\$)
293	1	5-Gal. Pail			
294	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 2 Gases		
295	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 2 Gases		
296	1	55-Gal. Drum			
297	1	5-Gal. Pail			
298	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 3 Flammable Liquids		
299	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 3 Flaminable Eliquids		
300	1	55-Gal. Drum			
301	1	5-Gal. Pail			
302	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 3 Enamel Paint Cans		
303	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 5 Enamer I ann Cans		
304	1	55-Gal. Drum			
305	1	5-Gal. Pail			
306	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 4.1 Flammable Solids		
307	1	20-30 Gal.	Class III I Idillinaole Solids		
308	1	55-Gal. Drum			
309	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 4.2 Spontaneously Combustible Waste		
310	1	10-15 Gal.			
311	1	20-30 Gal.			
312	1	55-Gal. Drum			
313	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 4.3 Dangerous When Wet Waste		
314	1	10-15 Gal.			
315	1	20-30 Gal.			
316	1	55-Gal. Drum			
317	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 5.1 Oxidizers		
318	1	10-15 Gal.			
319	1	20-30 Gal.			
320	1	55-Gal. Drum			
321	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 6.1 Poisons		
322	1	10-15 Gal.			
323	1	20-30 Gal.		1	

ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
324	1	55-Gal. Drum			
325	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 8 Corrosives-Acids		
326	1	10-15 Gal.			
327	1	20-30 Gal.			
328	1	55-Gal. Drum			
329	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 8 Corrosives-Caustic		
330	1	10-15 Gal.			
331	1	20-30 Gal.			
332	1	55-Gal. Drum			
333	1	5-Gal. Pail	Class 9 Waste		
334	1	10-15 Gal.			
335	1	20-30 Gal.			
336	1	55-Gal. Drum			
337	1	5-Gal. Pail	Mercury Compounds		
338	1	10-15 Gal.			
339	1	20-30 Gal.			
340	1	55-Gal. Drum			
341	1	5-Gal. Pail	Mercury (Elemental)		
342	1	10-15 Gal.			
343	1	5-Gal. Pail	Nonhazardous, Non-regulated Waste		
344	1	10-15 Gal.			
345	1	20-30 Gal.			
346	1	55-Gal. Drum			
347	1	5-Gal. Pail	Latex Paint Cans		
348	1	10-15 Gal.			
349	1	20-30 Gal.			
350	1	55-Gal. Drum			
351	1	5-Gal. Pail	Aerosols		
352	1	10-15 Gal.			
353	1	20-30 Gal.			
354	1	55-Gal. Drum			
			1 2 – Waste Stream	T	
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit	Extended
2.7.7				Price (\$)	Price (\$)
355	1	5-Gal. Pail			
356	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 2 Gases		
357	1	20-30 Gal.	-		
358	1	55-Gal. Drum			
359	1	5-Gal. Pail	-		
360	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 3 Flammable Liquids		
361	1	20-30 Gal.	· ·		
362	1	55-Gal. Drum			
363	1	5-Gal. Pail	-		
364	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 3 Enamel Paint Cans		
365	1	20-30 Gal.	-		
366	1	55-Gal. Drum			
367	1	5-Gal. Pail	-		
368	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 4.1 Flammable Solids		
369	1	20-30 Gal.	-		
370	1	55-Gal. Drum			
371	1	5-Gal. Pail	-		
372	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 4.2 Spontaneously Combustible Waste		
373	1	20-30 Gal.	1		
374	1	55-Gal. Drum			J

ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
375	1	5-Gal. Pail			
376	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 4.3 Dangerous When Wet Waste		
377	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 4.5 Dangerous when wet waste		
378	1	55-Gal. Drum			
379	1	5-Gal. Pail			
380	1	10-15 Gal.			
381	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 5.1 Oxidizers		
382	1	55-Gal. Drum			
383	1	5-Gal. Pail			
384	1	10-15 Gal.			
385	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 6.1 Poisons		
386	1	55-Gal. Drum			
387	1	5-Gal. Pail			
388	1	10-15 Gal.			
			Class 8 Corrosives-Acids		
389	1	20-30 Gal.			
390	1	55-Gal. Drum			
391	1	5-Gal. Pail			
392	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 8 Corrosives-Caustic		
393	1	20-30 Gal.	Class o Collegives Causele		
394	1	55-Gal. Drum			
395	1	5-Gal. Pail			
396	1	10-15 Gal.	Class 9 Waste		
397	1	20-30 Gal.	Class 9 waste		
398	1	55-Gal. Drum			
399	1	5-Gal. Pail			
400	1	10-15 Gal.	1., .		
401	1	20-30 Gal.	Mercury Compounds		
402	1	55-Gal. Drum			
403	1	5-Gal. Pail			
404	1	10-15 Gal.	Mercury (Elemental)		
405	1	5-Gal. Pail			
406	1	10-15 Gal.			
407	1	20-30 Gal.	Nonhazardous, Non-regulated Waste		
408	1	55-Gal. Drum			
409	1				
	_	5-Gal. Pail			
410	1	10-15 Gal.	Latex Paint Cans		
411	1	20-30 Gal.			
412	1	55-Gal. Drum			
413	1	5-Gal. Pail			
414	1	10-15 Gal.	Aerosols		
415	1	20-30 Gal.			
416	1	55-Gal. Drum			
			Waste – Waste Stream		
ITEM	QTY	UOM	DESCRIPTION	Unit Price (\$)	Extended Price (\$)
417	1	Gallon			
418	1	CY	Hazardous PPE (e.g., disposable coveralls, gloves, booties, respirator		
419	1	Ton	canisters, splash suits)		
420	1	55-Gal. Drum			
421	1	Gallon			
422	1	CY	Hazardous Disposable equipment/items (e.g., plastic covers, aluminum		
423	1	Ton	foil, conduit pipe, composite liquid waste samplers, tubing, sample		
424	1	55-Gal. Drum	containers, boxes, tape)		
425	1	10-Yd Roll Off	Totalisto, oorloo, mpo,		
743	1	10-14 Kull Ull	I .	l	

CY Ton Non-hazardous IDW 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Medical Waste – Waste Stream	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 445 1 Ton Hazardous Packaging/ shipping mater		
CY	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition of the property of the pro		
Ton	427	The state of the s	
55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off	427		
Ty UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$)	1		
Medical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	1		
TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	1		Extended
20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	1		
Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	1	Price (\$) P	
20-Gal. Cont.	1	Price (\$) P	
	1	Price (\$) P	
Ganon Other medical waste	1	Price (\$) P	
20 Cal Cont	427	Price (\$) P	
20-Gai. Cont.	427	Price (\$) P	
TOTAL RID \$	427	Price (\$) P	
IUIAL DID	427	Price (\$) P	
	427	Price (\$) P	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID	
TOR	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID	
TOR	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID \$	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID \$	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID \$	
	427	TOTAL BID \$	
	427	Price (\$) P ectors) TOTAL BID \$	
	427	Pr ectors)	I
20-Gal. Cont.	1	Price (\$) P	
	1	Price (\$) P	
Gallon Other medical waste	1	Price (\$) P	
	427	Price (\$) P	
20-Gal. Cont.	427	Price (\$) P	
20-Gal. Cont.	427	Price (\$) P	
Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427	Price (\$) P	
20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		Extended
Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427		
Medical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 445 1 Ton 446 1 55-Gal. Drum 447 1 10-Yd Roll Off 448 1 Gallon 449 1 CY 4450 1 Ton Non-hazardous IDW		
Ty UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$)	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 445 1 Ton 446 1 55-Gal. Drum 447 1 10-Yd Roll Off 448 1 Gallon 449 1 CY		
Ty UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$)	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 445 1 Ton 446 1 55-Gal. Drum 447 1 10-Yd Roll Off 448 1 Gallon 449 1 CY		
55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY 445 1 Ton 446 1 55-Gal. Drum 447 1 10-Yd Roll Off 448 1 Gallon	 	
Ton	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well deaded) 436 1 CY CY Hazardous Groundwater (from well deaded) 438 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spental) 440 1 CY CY 441 1 Ton Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Packaging/ shipping mater 443 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Packaging/ shipping mater		
Ton S5-Gal. Drum	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well deaded) 436 1 CY CY Hazardous Groundwater (from well deaded) 438 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spental) 440 1 CY CY 441 1 Ton Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Packaging/ shipping mater 443 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Packaging/ shipping mater		
CY	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition of the property of the pro		
Gallon CY Non-hazardous IDW S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off DESCRIPTION Unit Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste Regulat	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposed to the property of the proper		
Gallon CY Non-hazardous IDW S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off DESCRIPTION Unit Price (\$) Price (\$)	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposed to the property of the proper		
10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Non-hazardous IDW S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off DESCRIPTION Unit Price (\$) Price (\$) Cy Price (\$)	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon 443 1 Gallon 443 1 Gallon 444 1 CY	als	
55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum 443 1 Gallon		
Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Wedical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM Gallon CGallon CGA CGA DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) CGA CGA CORL CGA CGA CORL CGA CGA CORL CGA CGA CORL CGA	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton 442 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent)		
CY	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent)		
Gallon CY Ton Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY 441 1 Ton Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent)		
Gallon CY Ton Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon 440 1 CY Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition of the properties of	,,	
10n	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum 439 1 Gallon	solvent, washwater)	
Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Description Ton Solution Solution Ton Ton Solution Ton Solution Ton Solution Ton Ton Ton Solution Ton Ton Ton Ton Solution Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Solution Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton 438 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition of the state		
CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials CY Ton Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Modical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Regulated medical waste	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition)		
CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials CY Ton Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Modical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Extended Price (\$) Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Regulated medical waste	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon 436 1 CY 437 1 Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition)		
Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton Ton CY Ton Ton CY Ton Ton CY Ton	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Soil cuttings 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off Hazardous Drilling mud/water 431 1 Gallon Gallon Hazardous Drilling mud/water 433 1 Ton Ton Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition) 434 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Groundwater (from well decomposition)		
10n	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum 435 1 Gallon	velopment/ purging)	
Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Medical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Price (\$) Price (\$) Gallon Regulated medical waste 20-Gal. Cont.	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton 434 1 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Drilling mud/water		
CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Medical Waste – Waste Stream TY UOM DESCRIPTION Unit Price (\$) Fxtended Price (\$) Gallon Regulated medical waste	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY 433 1 Ton Hazardous Drilling mud/water		
Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Ton Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY		
Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Ton Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton Hazardous Soil cuttings 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon 432 1 CY		
Ton S5-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum I0-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum I0-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum I0-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton S5-Gal. Drum I0-Yd Roll Off CY Unit Extended Price (S) Gallon Sharps (e.g., needles, syringes, autoinjectors) 20-Gal. Cont. Gallon Regulated medical waste Gallon Reg	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off 431 1 Gallon		
Ton S5-Gal. Drum Gallon CY Ton Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater)	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum 430 1 10-Yd Roll Off		
CY	427 1 CY 428 1 Ton 429 1 55-Gal. Drum		
Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum Hazardous Drilling mud/water	4271CY4281TonHazardous Soil cuttings		
10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY	427 1 CY		
10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY			
55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Hazardous Drilling mud/water Hazardous Groundwater (from well development/ purging) Hazardous Groundwater (from well development/ purging) Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Cleaning fluids (e.g., spent solvent, washwater) Hazardous Packaging/ shipping materials Hazardous Packagi			
Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton Ton 55-Gal. Drum 10-Yd Roll Off Gallon CY Ton	426		
CY		Price (\$) P	Price (\$)
Gallon CY	ITEM QTY UOM DESCRIPTION		Extended

i nis dia nas deen reviewea in accoraance with Article 103-1 of the Standara Sp	ecifications for Roads and Structures 201
Reviewed by	(date
Accepted by NCDOT	(dat

CONTRACTOR CONTACT INFORMATION

Contractor:
Address:
Telephone Number(s):
Email:
Name of individual authorized to answer questions concerning the information contained herein:
Name:
Email:
Telephone Number(s):

CONTRACTOR WORK EXPERIENCE

Bidders shall provide the following information:

As part of your bid submittal package, on an attached separate document, provide your Scope of Work Experience that includes performance of duties outlined in this proposal.

The Scope of Work Experience should be clear and legible in all respects without a need for additional explanation or information and should demonstrate that the bidder has a thorough understanding of the requirements of this contract. The Engineer reserves the right to request additional information or clarification if necessary, in his/her discretion.

The Bidder is limited to two (2) pages for his/her Scope of Work Experience. Binders, dividers, tabs, etc. are prohibited.

REFERENCES

The Bidder shall provide three (3) references of government agencies and/or private firms for whom they have provided the services in this RFP on a contract basis during the last three (3) years:

Reference #1	
Agency or Firm Name	
Business Address	
Mailing Address	
Contact Person	
Telephone	
Email Address	
Type of Work	
Contract Amount	
Reference #2	
Agency or Firm Name	
Business Address	
Mailing Address	
Contact Person	
Telephone	
Email Address	
Type of Work	
Contract Amount	
Reference #3	
Agency or Firm Name	
Business Address	
Mailing Address	
Contact Person	
Telephone	
Email Address	
Type of Work	
Contract Amount	

LIST OF DBE SUBCONTRACTORS

Firm Name and Address	Item No.	Item Description	* Agreed upon Unit Price	** Dollar Volume of Item
Name				
Address				
Name				
Address				
Name				
Address				
Name				
Address				
Name				
Address				
Name				
Address				
AAD II VII CODECII (4 0			

** Dollar Volume of DBE Subcontractor	\$	
DBE Percentage of Total Contract Bid Price	ce	%

If firm is a Material Supplier Only, show Dollar Volume as 60% of Agreed Upon Amount from Letter of Intent. If firm is a Manufacturer, show Dollar Volume as 100% of Agreed Upon Amount from Letter of Intent.

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

CORPORATION

The bidder being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating N.C.G.S. §133-24 within the last three years, and that the bidder intends to do the work with his own bona fide employees or subcontractors and will not bid for the benefit of another contractor.

By submitting this non-collusion, debarment and gift ban certification, the Contractor is attesting his status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. §133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR

	Ful	l name of Corpor	ation
		•	
	Ac	ddress as Prequali	fied
		•	
A		D	
Attest _		By _	
	Secretary/Assistant Secretary		President/Vice President/Assistant Vice President
	Select appropriate title		Select appropriate title
	• • •		** *
	Duint antona Cianada nana		Duint automa Cianada nama
	Print or type Signer's name		Print or type Signer's name

CORPORATE SEAL

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

PARTNERSHIP

The person executing the bid, on behalf of the Bidder, being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee of the bidder has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating N.C.G.S. § 133-24 within the last three years, and that the Bidder intends to do the work with its own bonafide employees or subcontractors and is not bidding for the benefit of another contractor.

In addition, execution of this bid in the proper manner also constitutes the Bidder's certification of status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

Full Nar	ne of Partne	rshin
I dii i tai	ine of furthe	isiip
Address	s as Prequali	fied
	1	
	_	
	By	
Signature of Witness		Signature of Partner
Signature of Witness		Digitature of Farther
Print or type Signer's name		Print or type Signer's name

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

The person executing the bid, on behalf of the Bidder, being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee of the bidder has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating N.C.G.S. § 133-24 within the last three years, and that the Bidder intends to do the work with its own bonafide employees or subcontractors and is not bidding for the benefit of another contractor.

In addition, execution of this bid in the proper manner also constitutes the Bidder's certification of status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

Full	Name of Firm
Addres	ss as Prequalified
Signature of Witness	Signature of Member/Manager/Authorized Agent
č	Select appropriate title
Print or type Signer's name	Print or type Signer's Name

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

JOINT VENTURE (2) or (3)

The person executing the bid, on behalf of the Bidder, being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee of the bidder has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating $N.C.G.S. \ \S \ 133-24$ within the last three years, and that the Bidder intends to do the work with its own bonafide employees or subcontractors and is not bidding for the benefit of another contractor.

In addition, execution of this bid in the proper manner also constitutes the Bidder's certification of status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR

Instructions: **2 Joint Venturers** Fill in lines (1), (2) and (3) and execute. **3 Joint Venturers** Fill in lines (1), (2), (3) and (4) and execute. On Line (1), fill in the name of the Joint Venture Company. On Line (2), fill in the name of one of the joint venturers and execute below in the appropriate manner. On Line (3), print or type the name of the other joint venturer and execute below in the appropriate manner. On Line (4), fill in the name of the third joint venturer, if applicable and execute below in the appropriate manner.

	Name of Joint Venture	
	Name of Contractor	
	Address as Prequalified	
Signature of Witness or Attest	By	Signature of Contractor
Print or type Signer's name		Print or type Signer's name
If Corporation, affix Corporate Seal	and	
	Name of Contractor	
	Address as Prequalified	
Signature of Witness or Attest	By	Signature of Contractor
Print or type Signer's name		Print or type Signer's name
If Corporation, affix Corporate Seal	and	
Nan	ne of Contractor (for 3 Joint Ventu	ure only)
	Address as Prequalified	
Signature of Witness or Attest	Ву	Signature of Contractor
Print or type Signer's name		Print or type Signer's name
If Corporation, affix Corporate Seal		

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

INDIVIDUAL DOING BUSINESS UNDER A FIRM NAME

The person executing the bid, on behalf of the Bidder, being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee of the bidder has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating N.C.G.S. § 133-24 within the last three years, and that the Bidder intends to do the work with its own bonafide employees or subcontractors and is not bidding for the benefit of another contractor.

In addition, execution of this bid in the proper manner also constitutes the Bidder's certification of status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

Name of Contractor	
	Individual name
Trading and doing business as	
	Full name of Firm
	Address as Prequalified
Signature of Witness	Signature of Contractor, Individually
Print or type Signer's name	Print or type Signer's name

NON-COLLUSION, DEBARMENT AND GIFT BAN CERTIFICATION

INDIVIDUAL DOING BUSINESS IN HIS OWN NAME

The person executing the bid, on behalf of the Bidder, being duly sworn, solemnly swears (or affirms) that neither he, nor any official, agent or employee of the bidder has entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action which is in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any bid or contract, that the bidder has not been convicted of violating N.C.G.S. § 133-24 within the last three years, and that the Bidder intends to do the work with its own bonafide employees or subcontractors and is not bidding for the benefit of another contractor.

In addition, execution of this bid in the proper manner also constitutes the Bidder's certification of status under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States in accordance with the Debarment Certification attached, provided that the Debarment Certification also includes any required statements concerning exceptions that are applicable.

N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with the State. By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.

Name of Contractor	
	Print or type Individual name
	Address as Prequalified
	Signature of Contractor, Individually
	Print or type Signer's Name
Signature of Witness	
Print or type Signer's name	

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

Conditions for certification:

- 1. The prequalified bidder shall provide immediate written notice to the Department if at any time the bidder learns that his certification was erroneous when he submitted his debarment certification or explanation filed with the Department, or has become erroneous because of changed circumstances.
- 2. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this provision, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. A copy of the Federal Rules requiring this certification and detailing the definitions and coverages may be obtained from the Contract Officer of the Department.
- 3. The prequalified bidder agrees by submitting this form, that he will not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in NCDOT contracts, unless authorized by the Department.
- 4. For Federal Aid projects, the prequalified bidder further agrees that by submitting this form he will include the Federal-Aid Provision titled *Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contract (Form FHWA PR* 1273) provided by the Department, without subsequent modification, in all lower tier covered transactions.
- 5. The prequalified bidder may rely upon a certification of a participant in a lower tier covered transaction that he is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless he knows that the certification is erroneous. The bidder may decide the method and frequency by which he will determine the eligibility of his subcontractors.
- 6. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this provision. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 7. Except as authorized in paragraph 6 herein, the Department may terminate any contract if the bidder knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available by the Federal Government.

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

The prequalified bidder certifies to the best of his knowledge and belief, that he and his principals:

- a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
- b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records; making false statements; or receiving stolen property;
- c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph b. of this certification; and
- d. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.
- e. Will submit a revised Debarment Certification immediately if his status changes and will show in his bid proposal an explanation for the change in status.

If the prequalified bidder cannot certify that he is not debarred, he shall provide an explanation with this submittal. An explanation will not necessarily result in denial of participation in a contract.

Failure to submit a non-collusion affidavit and debarment certification will result in the prequalified bidder's bid being considered non-responsive.

BID SUBMITTAL PACKAGE CHECKLIST

This checklist has been provided to assist you in completing your Bid Submittal Package. Review this list and verify that all necessary items have been completed.

Check Box	Page Number	Description
	1	Cover Sheet.
	2 - 11	Contract Bid Form.
	12	Contractor Contact Information.
	13	Contractor Work Experience
	14	References
	15	List of DBE Subcontractors.
	16	Execution of Bid Non-Collusion Affidavit, Debarment Certification and Gift Ban Certification, executed.
	24	Bid Submittal Package Checklist.
		Addendum, if applicable.
		Submit original and two (2) duplicate copies.

YOU MUST BE PRE-QUALIFIED TO BID AS A BIDDER OR POC PRIME CONTRACTOR! SEE PROJECT SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR FURTHER INSTRUCTIONS.

End of bid submittal package!